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Ref. TBK 14/0080 March 2, 2010

Subject :  Invitation to the 2010 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders and Announcement
of the Right for Dividend

To : Shareholders of Thai Oil Public Company Limited

Attachments: 1. Minutes of the 2009 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders held on April 3, 2009

2. 2009 Annual Report in CD-ROM and summarized version (showing 2009
financial statements) and correspondence postcard for full version of 2009
Annual Report

Registration form for the 2010 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
Proxy form B and PO BOX envelope

Conditions, procedures and proxy granting for registration

Summarized profile of the candidates to be elected as new directors
(Supporting Documents for Agenda 6)

7. The Company’s definition of Independent Director

8. The Company’s director nomination

9. The Company’s Articles of Association related to shareholders’ meeting

10. Map of 2010 AGM Venue

Fe gl

11. List of the Company’s representative directors for proxy granting in the 2010 AGM

12. Correspondence form for Thaioil’s Refinery Site Visit

The Board of Directors” Meeting of Thai Oil Public Company Limited (the Company)
No0.1/2010 on February 19, 2010 has resolved as follows:

1. To propose the dividend payment for the operating results from January 1 to
December 31, 2009 at Baht 2.55 per share, total 2,040,027,873 shares, amounted to Baht 5,202
million. The Board has set the Record Date to entitle rightful shareholders who may receive the
dividend on March 8, 2010; to aggregate rightful shareholders list under Section 225, Securities
and Stock Exchange Act B.E.2535 (Amended B.E. 2551) by recording from closed share
registration book on March 9, 2010; and to pay the dividend on April 28, 2010.

After deduction of the interim dividend payment for the first half of 2009 performance
at Baht 1.05 per share which is equivalent to Baht 2,142 million paid on September 17, 2009,
the Company will pay the remaining dividend at Baht 1.50 per share, which is equivalent to
Baht 3,060 million in total, paid from retained earnings with 30%, 25% and 0% Corporate
Income Tax at the rate of Baht 0.54, 0.82 and 0.14 respectively.

However, the right to receive dividend is not confirmed until approved by the 2010
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.

2. To arrange the 2010 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders (AGM) on Friday,
April 2, 2010, 14.00 hours at Vibhavadee Ballroom, Sofitel Centara Grand Bangkok Hotel,
located on 1695 Phaholyothin Road, Chatuchak, Bangkok 10900. The Board has set the Record
Date to entitle rightful shareholders who may attend and vote in the AGM on March 8, 2010,
and to aggregate rightful shareholders list under Section 225, Securities and Stock Exchange
Act B.E.2535 (Amended B.E. 2551) by recording from closed share registration book on
March 9, 2010.

3. To set up the 2010 AGM agendas - the Company had announced on our website to
invite agenda proposal from shareholders in advance from November 1, 2009 to January 31,
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2010, but there were no proposals of agenda. The Company, therefore, would like to announce
the agendas proposed by the Board as follows:

Agenda 1 To certify the minutes of the 2009 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
held on April 3, 2009

The Company arranged the 2009 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on April
3, 2009. The minutes of the Meeting was submitted to the Stock Exchange of Thailand within
14 days and to the Ministry of Commerce as required by laws, as well as disclosed on the
Company’s website. (Please see Attachment 1 for details.)

Board’s opinion: After due consideration, the Board found it appropriate for the Meeting to
certify the minutes of the 2009 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
held on April 3, 2009, according to the draft presented by the Board.

Required votes:  majority votes of the shareholders who attend the meeting and cast their votes.
In case of a tie vote, the chairman of the meeting shall have a casting vote.

Agenda 2 To certify the Company’s 2009 operating results and to approve the audited
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2009

Board’s opinion: After due consideration, the Board found it appropriate for the Meeting to
certify the 2009 operating results and to approve the audited financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2009, which have already been
approved and certified by the Company’s auditor.

The Company’s 2009 operating results are as follow:

Operating Results 2009
Sales revenue (million Baht) 284,123
Net profit (million Baht) 12,062
Earning per share (Baht per share) 3,91

Financial position 2009
Total assets (million Baht) 137,745
Total Liabilities (million Baht) 66,058
Shareholder's equity net (million Baht) 71,687

Required votes:  majority votes of the shareholders who attend the meeting and cast their votes.
In case of a tie vote, the chairman of the meeting shall have a casting vote.

Agenda 3 To approve the dividend payment for the Company’s 2009 operating results

Board’s opinion: After due consideration, the Board found it appropriate to propose to the
Meeting to approve the dividend payment from the Company’s 2009
operating results from January 1 to December 31, 2009 which will be paid
to shareholders of total 2,040,027,873 shares at the rate of Baht 2.55 per
share, or approximately amounted to Baht 5,202 million. The proposal to
AGM is to approve the dividend payment of Bath 1.50 per share, amounted
to Baht 3,060 million, to shareholders as an addition of the interim dividend.
The additional dividend will be paid from retained earnings with 30%, 25%
and 0% Corporate Income Tax at the rate of Baht 0.54, 0.82 and 0.14
respectively. Whereby, shareholders paying personal income tax shall be
entitled to a tax credit for the received dividend in accordance with Section
47 bis of the Revenue Code of Thailand as follows:



o The dividend of Baht 0.54 per share, paid from the net profit with 30%
Corporate Income Tax, can be credited at 30/70 of the dividend.

e The dividend of Baht 0.82 per share, paid from the net profit with 30%
Corporate Income Tax, can be credited at 25/75 of the dividend.

e The dividend of Baht 0.07 per share, paid from dividend which is
exempted from calculated income tax, cannot be credited.

e The dividend of Baht 0.07 per share, paid from the portion of net profit
after deduction of net loss carried forward for five years up to the present
accounting period, cannot be credited.

And the Meeting is requested to acknowledge the interim dividend payment
approved by the Board on August 20, 2009 at the rate of Baht 1.05 per
share, amounted to Baht 2,142 million, which was paid on September 17,
2009.

The Board has set the Record Date to entitle rightful shareholders who may
receive the dividend on March 8, 2010; to aggregate rightful shareholders
list under Section 225, Securities and Stock Exchange Act B.E.2535
(Amended B.E. 2551) by recording from closed share registration book on
March 9, 2010; and to pay the dividend on April 28, 2010.

The table below shows the comparison of the Company’s dividend payment
during the past 3 years.

Operating Results

Description 2009 a

(Current Proposal) 2lls 2007
No. of common shares 2,040,027,873 2,040,027,873 2,040,027,873
Net profit (million baht) 12,062 224 19,118
Earnings per share  (baht per share) 591 0.11 037
Dividend payment  (baht per share) 255 2.75 4.50
e Interim dividend  (baht per share) 1.05 1.75 175
Dividend payment date | September 17, 2009 [September 23, 2008 | October 11, 2007
e Annual dividend (baht per share) 1.50 1.00 2.75
Dividend payment date April 28, 2010 April 22,2009 |  April 25, 2008
Total dividend payment (million baht) 5,202 5,610 9,180
Dividend payment ratio ® (%) 43 2,500 48

Remarks :

™ Net profits of the previous years are different from the net profit presented in the financial statement of the
current year due to adjustment to cope with change of accounting policy for comparison to the current year
purpose.

@ The present dividend payout policy of the Board of Directors is to pay at least 25 percent of the consolidated
net profit after deductions of all categories of reserves as specified in the Company Regulations and
applicable laws. Payment of such dividend is subject to the cash flows and investment plans of Thaioil and

Thaioil subsidiaries in each year, and other requirements and considerations as determined by the Board of
Directors.

Required votes:  majority votes of the shareholders who attend the meeting and cast their votes.
In case of a tie vote, the chairman of the meeting shall have a casting vote.

Agenda 4 To approve the 2010 annual remuneration of the Company’s Directors

Board’s opinion: The Board of Directors at the meeting no. 1/2010 on February 19, 2010,
with recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, has



thoroughly considered the remuneration of the Company’s directors and all
appropriate factors with reference to remunerations of directors in the same
industry, current economic situations, and the Company’s net profit. After
due consideration, the Board found it appropriate to propose the Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders to approve the remuneration of the
Company’s directors as appeared in the table below:

Remuneration of Directors

Types of Remuneration 2010 2009
(Current Proposal)

1. Fixed Salary Baht/Month Baht/Month
Chairman" 75,000 75,000
Directors 60,000 60,000

2. Annual Bonus® 36 million Baht 25 million Baht

Remuneration of Sub-Committees
(Sub-committees include Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, and Corporate Governance Committee)

Types of Remuneration 2009 2008
(current proposal)
1. Fixed Salary Baht/Month Baht/Month
Chairman® 31,250 31,250
Directors 25,000 25,000

Remark:

@ The Remuneration of Chairman of the Board, Chairman of Sub-committees shall be
25% higher than Directors’.

@ Bonus for Directors who served the Company in 2009 and those who resigned and/or
retired during 2009. The bonus portion is calculated based on the term of each
director. The bonus of Chairman of the Board shall be 25% higher than Directors’.

Required votes:  not less than two-third (2/3) of the total number of votes of the shareholders
attending the meeting and having the right to vote.

Agenda 5 To _approve the 2010 annual appointment of auditors and determination of
their Remuneration

Board’s opinion: The Public Company Limited Act B.E. 2535 (1992), Section 120 requires
that auditors and their remuneration be appointed and determined by the
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders. After due consideration, with
recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board found it appropriate to
propose the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders to appoint auditors
from KPMG Phoomchai Audit Ltd., which is also the audit office of the
Company’s subsidiaries, as the Company’s auditors in 2010. One of the
following auditors may audit and express their opinions towards the
Company’s financial statements.

1. Mr. Charoen Phosamritlert"” Certified Public Accountant Registration No. 4068
Auditing during the past 5 years: 1 Year, or

2. Mr. Winid Silamongkol Certified Public Accountant Registration No.3378
Auditing during the past 5 years: 2 Years, or




3. Mr. Vairoj Jindamaneepitak Certified Public Accountant Registration No. 3565
Auditing during the past 5 years: none

The nominated auditors do not have any relationship and/or conflict of
interest with the Company, subsidiaries, managements, major shareholders
or related persons of the said parties.

The Board also found it appropriate to propose the Meeting to approve the
remuneration for 2010 quarterly and year-end audits at the same rate as last
year which is illustrated in the table below:

Types of Fees =08l 2009
(current proposal)
1. Audit Fee
- Quarterly and year-end Audit Fee 2,390,000 Baht | 2,290,000 Baht
- Fees for review the compliance with 75,000 Baht 75,000 Baht
condition of the BOI promotion each each
certificates
2. Non-Audit Fee
- Other expenses which cover not more than not more than

miscellaneous expenses during work 10% of the audit | 10% of the audit
period such as traveling, documentation| fee fee

and facsimile expenses

Audit Committee’s opinion: the Audit Committee has considered performance,
independence, and remuneration of 3 auditors, and expressed their
opinions to the Board of Directors to propose the appointment of Mr.
Charoen Phosamritlert, Mr. Winid Silamongkol, and Mr. Vairoj
Jindamaneepitak from KPMG Phoomchai Audit Ltd. as the Company’s
auditors in 2010 (current proposal). Mr. Charoen Phosamritlert signed the
Company’s 2009 financial statements and showed good performance as
an auditor. Together with this, the 2010 annual remuneration (current
proposal) was proposed to the Board.

Remark:

(1) Mr. Charoen Phosamritlert audited financial statements of 11 subsidiaries in 2009 with
total audit fees for subsidiaries of Baht 3,080,000.

Agenda 6 To approve the 2010 annual election of new directors in replacement of directors
retiring by rotation

At the 2010 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, one-third of total number of
Directors, amounted to 5 directors, shall be retired by rotation, namely:

(1) Mr. Prasert Bunsumpun Director and Member of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee

(2) Gen. Prayut Chan-O-Cha Director and Chairman of the Corporate Governance
Committee

(3) Mr. Apisak Tantivorawong Director and Member of the Corporate Governance Committee

(4) Mr. Krairit Nilkuha Director and Member of the Audit Committee

(5) Mr. Somnuk Kyavatanakij Director/ Chairman of the Boar



The Company has announced on our website providing an opportunity to
shareholders to nominate candidate(s) with qualifications required by the Public Company
Limited Act, laws governing securities and stock exchange, and the Company’s corporate
governance policy to be elected as Directors, and 5 candidates were nominated.

The Company, therefore, proposed these 5 candidates to the meeting of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee no. 1/2010 on February 2, 2009. The committee
thoroughly considered these candidates according to the nomination procedure and found that
their qualifications meet the requirements of the Public Company Limited Act B.E. 2535
(1992), and new regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and the Stock
Exchange of Thailand (SET) regarding the number and qualifications of independent directors.
These candidates also possess knowledge, capabilities and experience useful to the Company’s
business. The committee therefore proposed the list of candidates to the Board of Directors in
the meeting no. 1/2010 on February 19, 2010 and the Company was granted endorsement to
propose to the AGM. However, one of the candidates namely Mr. Kurujit Nakornthap later on
wished to withdraw himself from the nomination. The meeting of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee no. 2/2010 (extraordinary meeting) on February 26, 2010, therefore,
considered new candidate and proposed to the Board of Directors in the meeting no. 2/2010
(extraordinary meeting) on February 26, 2010 for endorsement to propose to the AGM.,

Board’s opinion: After due consideration, the Board of Directors, with recommendation of
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, found it appropriate to
propose the meeting to consider the re-election of directors as follows:

(1) Mr. Apisak Tantivorawong Independent Director and Member of the
Corporate Governance Committee

(2) Mr. Krairit Nilkuha Independent Director and Member of the
Audit Committee

And to consider the appointment of new directors as follows:

(1) Mr. Tevin Vongvanich Director (replacing Mr. Prasert Bunsumpun)

(2) Pol.Gen. Adul Sangsingkeo Independent Director (replacing Gen. Prayut
Chan-o-cha)

(3) Mr. Goanpot Asvinvichit Independent Director (replacing Mr. Somnuk
Kyavatanakij)

Biography of each candidate appears in Attachment 6.

Agenda 7 _Other business (if any)

Please be informed accordingly.

All shareholders are cordially invited to attend the 2010 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders of Thai Oil Public Company Limited on Friday, April 2, 2010, 2.00 p.m. at
Vibhavadee Ballroom, Sofitel Centara Grand Bangkok Hotel, located on 1695 Phaholyothin
Road, Chatuchak, Bangkok 10900. If you wish to appoint a representative to attend and vote at
the Meeting, please proceed with either of these 2 methods:

1) Granting proxy to one of the Company’s independent directors as listed in
Attachment 11 — please fill up and sign the proxy form as attached herewith and send back to
the Company together with a copy of your identification card within March 26, 2010 for
registration in advance, or




2) Granting proxy to other person — please fill up and sign the proxy form which
must _be presented by the representative at the meeting together with a copy of your
identification card and the original identification card of the proxy holder.

Note: For more convenience in registration, please present the Registration Form, with
barcode indicating shareholder’s registration number printed, (Attachment 3) at the
meeting. For shareholders who will attend the meeting by themselves, the original of
identification card or government official identification card or passport (in case of
foreigners) must be presented together with the Registration Form.

Yours truly,
Thai Oil Public Company Limited

f G.bil _

Surong Bulakul
Chief Executive Officer

Corporate Office
Tel 02299 0000, 02617 8300 ext. 7312-3
Fax 02299 0128



(Draft - Translation)

The Minute of 2009 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
Thai Oil Public Company Limited (TOP)

The Meeting was held on Friday April 3, 2009 from 2.25-5.40 p.m. at World Ballroom,
23" Floor, Centara Grand at Central World, 999/99 Rama 1 Road, Pathumwan, Bangkok,
Thailand.

Directors and Executives Attending the Meeting

(1) Mr. Somnuk Kyavatanakij* Chairman of the Board

(2) Mr. Nibhat Bhukkanasut* Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee
(3) Mr. Chaikasem Nitisiri* Director and Member of the Audit Committee
(4) Mr. Nit Chantramonklasri* Director and Member of the Audit Committee
(5) Mr. Krairit Nilkuha* Director and Member of the Audit Committee
(6) Gen. Prayut Chan-o-cha* Director and Chairman of the Corporate

Governance Committee

(7) Mr. Banphot Hongthong * Director and Member of the Corporate
Governance Committee

(8) Mr. Apisak Tantivorawong* Director and Member of the Corporate
Governance Committee

(9 Mr. Prajya Phinyawat Director and Member of the Corporate
Governance Committee

(10) Mr. Chakramon Phasukavanich*  Director and Chairman of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

(11) Mr. Prasert Bunsumpun Director and Member of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

(12) Mr. Nontigorn Kanchanachitra* Director and Member of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

(13) Ms. Puangpech Sarakun* Director and Member of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

(14) Mr. Pichai Chunhavajira Director

(15) Mr. Viroj Mavichak Director and Managing Director

(16) Mr. Somkeirt Hudthagosol Deputy Managing Director-Business and

(Acting) Deputy Managing Director-Refinery

Directors absent from the Meeting

None

Auditors Attending the Meeting
(1) Mr. Winid Silamongkol Certified Public Accountant Registration N0.3378

The Meeting convened at 2.25 p.m.

* Independent Director



Mr. Somnuk Kyavatanakij, Chairman of the Board, chaired the Meeting (“the Chairman”)
and introduced 15 directors and 1 executive attending the Meeting, as listed above.

The directors, the executive, and the auditor were all ready for the Meeting, the Chairman
then reported prior to proceeding with the Meeting that the Company has total
2,040,027,873 common shares with a par value per share of 10 baht comprising a paid-up
registered capital of 20,400,278,730.00 baht. There were 1,131 shareholders and 549
representatives by proxy present, totaled 1,680 attendees representing 1,467,616,253
shares, or 71.94 percent of the total issued share capital, higher than one-third of the total
issued share capital. This constituted a quorum according to Section 103 of the Public
Company Limited Act B.E. 2535 (1992), and Article 35 of the Articles of Association of
the Company. The Chairman, therefore, called the 2008 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders to consider matters according to the agenda which had been distributed to
shareholders with the notice calling this Meeting.

The Chairman informed the Meeting of the following voting process in accordance with
the Company’s Articles of Association:

- One share was entitled to one vote. Shareholders who had a conflict of interest on
any issue to be voted were ineligible to cast a vote except to vote for director
election.

- In voting for a resolution, the Chairman would ask and count only the votes for
disapproval and abstention. These votes would then be deducted from all qualified
votes at the Meeting, the remainder of which would constitute the votes in favor of
that item of business. If there were no votes for disapproval and abstention, the
agenda was resolved by unanimous votes.

The Chairman then invited questions concerning the voting process, asking that all the
questions be preceded by the shareholders’ name, but there were no questions. The
Chairman then proceeded with the following agenda.

Agenda 1 To certify the drafted minutes of the 2008 Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders held on April 4, 2008

The Chairman informed the Meeting that Section 96 of the Public Company Limited Act
B.E. 2535 (1992) provided that the public company must prepare minutes of the
shareholders meeting, and according to good governance practice, the minutes must be
adopted at the following meeting.

The Chairman then invited questions and comments from shareholders, asking that all the
questions be preceded by the shareholders’ name. The questions and opinions from
shareholders are as follows:

Mr. Chakapan Sae-Lee — Shareholder
- asked for clarification on page 12, line 3 of the minutes where it said
that last year there was stock gain at approximately 3 USD per barrel on
annual average.

Mr. Pichai Chunhavajira - Director
. Explained that in 2007 the Company had net profit approximately at
19,000 million baht, partly resulted from the increase in oil price, which



escalated from 50 USD at the beginning of the year to about 100 USD at
the end of the year. The Company’s refinery had total capacity of
220,000 barrels per day, and must reserve certain level of oil for
production and commercial purposes, as well as for legal reserve. Using
oil in the stock to feed the refinery for daily production, we need to buy
new shipment of oil in to replenish the stock. However, the products
were sold at the current price but the cost of goods sold was the price of
the previous month, and it kept repeating as cyclical process. The GRM
in 2007 included stock gain was at 3 USD per barrel by average. In
contrast to 2007, in 2008 oil price had dropped from about 86 USD at the
beginning to about 40 USD by the year end, resulting in high stock loss.

Mr. Chakapan Sae-Lee — Shareholder
. If so, at the beginning of last year the oil price was at 59 USD and at the
end of the year 86 USD, was it correct to figure out the stock gain by
multiplying the price differential of 27 USD?

Mr. Pichai Chunhavajira - Director
: Answered no. That would only represent certain part because there
were buying and purchasing transactions throughout the year and the
prices change occurred all the time. Thus, the total figure was more than
the differential between the beginning and the year end’s figures.

Mr. Wirat Uanarumit — Assistant Managing Director-Finance
: Added that last year the oil price at the beginning was 55 USD and the
closing price at the end of the year was 86 USD per barrel. The
differential was about 30 USD which actually had to be divided by 12
since the amount of stock was roughly equivalent to 1 month operation.
On this basis, we had profit resulted from stock gain at 3 USD per barrel
on annual average or about 6,000 — 7,000 million baht.

Mr. Chatri Charoennuang — Shareholder

: On page 21, last year he proposed that the snacks and souvenirs be
given via coupons to avoid problems and insufficiency of snacks. The ex-
chairman informed that some people brought bags for take-home purpose
causing problems and delayed registration process. If snacks were
provided in set boxes and distributed through coupons, each person
would receive it equally without any mess. There were also insufficient
souvenirs. He proposed to give coupons to exchange for gasoline either
at PTT, Shell, or Bangchak stations with 200-300 baht worth each would
be enough. There would be no problems and waste of time. Directors
should let the staff to spend time doing other things. Please consider this
proposal. The Board accepted last year, but there were still problems this
year.

Mr. Chakapan Sae-Lee — Shareholder
: Another thing which was very important. For many years he had seen
“the Common Shareholders Meeting” on the backdrop (the order of the
words in Thai might cause confusion to shareholders whether it was the
meeting of common shareholders or the annual general meeting of
shareholders). He was not sure whether there were extraordinary
shareholders got involved. Actually, other companies under PTT group,
they would say AGM or the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.
Corrections were needed for all documents including the invitation
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booklet. It had been incorrect for many years. There should be
improvement next time. Thank you.

After giving opportunities for shareholders to ask questions and express opinion freely
again but there were no further questions, the Chairman, therefore, proposed that the
Meeting consider approving the minutes of the 2008 Annual General Meeting held on
April 4, 2008, which had been distributed to shareholders together with the notice calling
this Meeting.

Resolution The Meeting resolved that the Minutes of the 2008 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders held on April 4, 2008 be approved with the
following votes:

Approved 1,455,247,845 votes,or  99.12%
Disapproved 0 votes, or 0.00%
Abstain 12,938,118 votes, or 0.88%
Agenda 2 To certify the Company’s 2008 operating results and to approve the

audited financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2008

The Chairman informed the Meeting that Section 112 and 113 of the Public Company
Limited Act B.E. 2535 (1992) provided that the public company must prepare the
operating results and the audited financial statements to be adopted and approved at the
following meeting.

The Chairman then reported that the operating results of the Company for 2008 and the
audited financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2008 were already
distributed to shareholders together with the notice calling this Meeting. Then a twelve-
minute comprehensive video presentation of Thaioil’s operating results for 2008 was
presented to the shareholders.

After the video presentation, the Chairman invited questions and comments from
shareholders. The issues raised by shareholders are as follows:

Mr. Nirut Charoensuk - Shareholder
. Asked 2 questions:
1) How suitable was it with the current situation to do crack spread
hedging? Last year the Company posted a huge loss against the net gain
in 2005 and 2006. Therefore, comparing the cases when oil price highly
fluctuated and when it was stable, we could observe that the company
could make more profits when the oil price was stable rather than when it
fluctuated. So he would like to ask how suitable it was to enter into a
hedging contract in 2009.
2) What was the direction of local oil demand trend in 2009 compared to
2008? Also when comparing the potential of production capacity and
GRM of the first quarter this year to the fourth quarter last year, was it
still at high level or more than the fourth quarter last year?

-11 -



Managing Director

. Assigned Mr.Wirat Uanarumit, Assistant Managing Director-Finance,
to answer the first question, and Mr. Pongpun Amornvivat, Commercial
Manager, to answer the second question.

Mr. Wirat Uanarumit — Assistant Managing Director-Finance

. Clarified that crack spread hedging was considered by the Company as
one of risk management tools. It was not for speculation purpose since it
was not the Company’s core business. Crack spread was the differential
between product prices and crude prices. The Company did not focus on
locking one side either crude price or product price because the business
earned from crack spread. To do hedging was to lock or to forward, in
other word to sell the spread in advance based on the corporate plan. The
Company would do the hedging if the forward market allowed to lock
the spread at higher level than the corporate plan. Last year the Company
did the hedging at higher level than the corporate plan, which targeted at
20-25% of production, meaning that the rest 75-80% was not hedged. It
was because the purpose of hedging was for smoother profits and
enhancing possibilities to achieve the targeted profit. The loss item
shown in the financial statements meant that the Company had loss in the
hedged portion of 20% where the market spread was higher than hedged.
However, the Company still earned the high market spread from the 80%
portion that was not hedged.

Mr. Pongpun Amornvivat, Commercial Manager

Chairman

: Answered the 2" question that in 2009 the Company forecasted that
local oil demand would deviate from last year by 2 factors. Gasoline
price at the gas station had sharply declined from the end of last year,
causing increasing usage of gasoline in Quarter 1 and lower the LPG and
NGV consumption. In general, when compared to last year, all products
demand especially Jet oil had downward trend due to weakening
economy. Jet oil demand sharply dropped because of local political
situations and global economic crisis which resulted in lower
transportation. However, demand of other products especially gasoline
increased in Quarter 1. If the economy could recover during the year end,
full year demand of all products should be similar to that of last year.
GRM of Quarter 1 this year compared to Quarter 4 last year could not be
figured out at the moment because the Company had not disclosed its
first quarter result yet. However, crack spreads in general still have good
margin. GRM of the Singapore market was still positive despite a slight
drop. Thaioil had flexibility in production so that the Company could
adjust the product slate to obtain more high-value products. For instance,
at the beginning of this year, gasoline price stepped up a lot and the
Company could adjust our production to produce higher volume of light
distillate for higher profits.

: Added to Mr. Wirat’s answer that the loss item did not mean real loss,
but meant profit loss. For example, the Company forecasted GRM at 5
USD, so the Company bought at 5 USD. If the GRM dropped to 4 USD,
we would have additional profit. But if the GRM increased to 6 USD,
there would be loss, but loss in profit. Shareholders should not be
worried. This was risk management for GRM.
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Mr. Temjai Suwannatad - Shareholder

Chairman

: Asked the Meeting to turn to page 43 of the 2009 AGM invitation
document, item 33 stated that the board of directors must arrange
shareholders meeting which was an annual general meeting. But the
Company stated “Common Shareholder Meeting” which would be
against the law. Therefore, he asked the Meeting to ratify to avoid
problems in the future.

: Confirmed that this meeting was the annual general meeting, and hoped
that everyone would understand without any doubts.

Mr. Aroon Niramolparadee - Shareholder

Chairman

: From the video presentation, the Company was trying to say that the
loss was from the fluctuation of oil price. A moment ago, the director
explained that the Company had profits, but fewer profits or loss in
profits. | would like to ask for a summary of the cause of last year’s loss.
Weren’t there any avoidance? If oil price fluctuated like last year, there
would be enormous loss like this no matter how well the Management
managed the Company. Was that right?

. As already clarified that the Company had tried to mitigate risk as
caused by fluctuated GRM by hedging, which was not relevant to stock
loss. GRM could vary maybe from 10 to 5 USD. Hedging could prevent
the fluctuation. However, he asked Management to add more clarification
to this point?

Managing Director

: Added that the Company had stock loss due to extreme change in oil
price. When oil price increased, the Company would gain from the
differential. This was nature of petroleum refining business. To avoid
stock loss, the Company had to buy in advance. This was also risky
because the Company did not know for sure what lay ahead. It was the
business nature and the Company had to live with it. Whenever there was
stock gain, it revealed that oil price increased in that year. Thus, it was
normal to have a risk in oil price decrease as well. For example, last year
there was a drastic change in oil price. It went up to 140 USD and then
dropped to 40 USD. The Company then had loss. Meanwhile, this year it
started with low price, there would be more chances that oil price would
increase than decrease. If considered this phenomenon in longer term not
on a yearly basis, it was called in technical term “normalized” or “trend
line”, the oil price would go up and down like business circle. In the long
run not year by year, this would not be the issue.

Mr. Tara Cholpranee — Shareholder

: Due to the fact that refining business depended on profits from crack
spreads, but the Company only presented the graph of crude and
petroleum products prices as appeared on page 44 of the annual report.
He proposed that the Company present another graph showing monthly
crack spreads as presented here so that it could be seen clearly how GRM
changed each month or each quarter.

The shareholder asked further on page 139 of the annual report regarding
statements of income for the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007 of
Thaioil and its subsidiaries. There were items of Revenues and Expenses.
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The Revenues item showed revenue from sale of goods and rendering of
services, and net foreign exchange gain, etc. The Expenses item showed
cost of sale of goods and rendering of services, and net foreign exchange
loss. In 2007 which was restated showed that there was net gain in
foreign exchange, while 2008 showed that there was net loss in foreign
exchange. Please clarify the cause of gain and loss in foreign exchange.

Managing Director

Mr. Winid

: Asked Mr. Winid Silamongkol, the Company’s auditor, to clarify.

- It could be observed from the statements of income that the Company’s
financial statements were highly related to foreign exchange, especially
crude purchasing and loans. In the notes to the financial statements,
especially loans and crude purchasing, there were a lot of items related to
foreign exchange. In terms of accounting, there were 2 parts. First,
transactions which were already settled during the year, in which there
were differentials between the transaction date and the due date. Another
part was required by accounting standards that if there were assets or
debts in foreign exchange at the end of the year, they must be calculated
with exchange rate at the end of the year. As a result, there were 2 parts
in the account: net foreign exchange gain and net foreign exchange loss.
Accounting standards required to show these items separately, i.e. gain
must be shown under the Revenues item, and loss under the Expenses
item. That was the principle.

Mr. Tara Cholpranee — Shareholder

Mr. Winid

. Asked further regarding foreign exchange where it said there was gain
and loss. Could it be identified as separate ratio? He understood that there
were many transactions related to foreign exchange as described before.
What was the percentage of real foreign exchange gain and loss, and
accounting foreign exchange gain and loss calculated at the end of the
year?

: Answered that the details should be clarified by the Management, and
asked the meeting to see the statements of cash flows on page 142. The
statements of cash flows required that in case of unrealized loss or gain,
it must be accrued. It was not shown in percentage here, but it showed
amount of unrealized transactions. On page 142, net profit for the year,
adjustments for depreciation, unrealized (gain) loss on foreign exchange,
these items showed only amount. The percentage was not identified in
financial statements. It could be seen that the statements of income
showed net amount while the statements of cash flows showed accrued
amount of unrealized transactions. These were items adjusted as at the
date on the statements, i.e. the end of the year, which were related to
assets and debts that had not been settled.

Mr. Tara Cholpranee — Shareholder

Mr. Wirat

. Further to the next line under the Revenues item, gain on cross currency
swap contracts was indicated in 2007 (restated) while none was shown in
2008, what happened to this item?

: Explained that there were many items in the financial statements
concerning foreign exchange which needed more clarification in details.
Hence, | would like to explain the risk management on foreign exchange.
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The Company realized that its business was strongly related to US
dollars, meaning that the revenues were linked to US dollars. Though the
products sold domestically were paid in Thai baht, buying and selling
prices were linked to US dollars according to the global market price.
The revenues of our business were therefore based on US dollars. As a
result, debt management also depended upon US dollars. Hence, the
Company tried to have loans partially in US dollars. From the portfolio
of loans, the Company had 65% of loans in US dollars, or approximately
600 million USD. This was in line with earnings before interest and
taxes, which was also at approximately 600 million USD. Considering
these two items together, it could be seen that they offset each other. For
instance, last year Thai baht weakened at about one baht plus, from the
beginning of 2007 at 34 baht per 1 USD to 35 baht per 1 USD. This
resulted in increased revenues, at the same time we had loss from realised
Cross currency swap contracts. These two transactions offset each other.

Mr. Tara Cholpranee — Shareholder

Mr. Pichai

. Clarified that Mr. Wirat might misunderstand the question since he was
considering the gain on cross currency swap contracts, not the net foreign
exchange gain. They were different parts. He believed that the Company
must have some buying or selling cross currency swap contracts. The
statements of 2007 showed the figures, while none in 2008 but only “-”
marked. That would have 2 meanings. First, there were no cross currency
swap contracts at all, which was impossible because the Management had
just explained. Therefore, there must be some cross currency swap
contracts. But the “-” mark could mean that there was gain or loss as 0
baht, which was also impossible.

. Clarified that the loss amount 897 million baht on page 139 meant that
there was foreign exchange loss at 897 million baht. Where was the
figure 897 million baht from? It was indicated “net”. Actually, there were
both gain and loss. How much was the loss? If considered page 188, it
could be observed that Thaioil had total borrowings approximately at
50,000 million baht, which included US dollars borrowings at 27,000
million baht or more than half of total borrowings. This item was not
settled as at 31 December. Therefore, it was marked as loss at the end of
the year, because the dollar exchange rate started from normal and got
stronger before the middle of the year. At the end of the year, baht
became softened resulting in the loss. Therefore, the Company posted
loss on the 27,000 million baht. How much did the Company lose? Page
142, which aligned with what the auditor said, showed the unrealized loss
on foreign exchange. If this amount had been settled, we would have lost
1,473 million baht. However, during the year there were buying and
purchasing of oil as well as repaying of loans, with profit at 576 million
baht. After being offset, there was net loss at 897 million baht. The
figures on these three pages could confirm one another.

Mr. Tara Cholpranee — Shareholder

: Added that he might have confused the directors, and restated the
question. Was there any categorization of the revenues regarding the net
foreign exchange gain with real use of US dollars? The gain on cross
currency swap contracts was perceived as forward contracts, i.e. there
were selling or buying forward contracts in foreign exchange between
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Mr. Winid

Thai baht and US dollars. The question was therefore regarding the swap
contract which was posted with the “-” mark. Was this referring to there
were no such contracts, or there were but the contracts were settled with
gain/loss at 0 baht, which was impossible. The question was “were there
any cross currency swap contracts by that “-” mark?”

: Explained that the financial statements for the year 2007 was booked,
especially the cross currency swap contracts, when they were settled. In
2007, the settlement of the contracts had already occurred, but in 2008
they were not settled yet. Booking of this item would be made only when
they were realized or settled. In 2008, they were not settled. When asked
if there were any cross currency swap contracts, the answer was yes. But
during the year 2008 no payment was made, therefore gain/loss did not
appear in the statements.

Mr. Tara Cholpranee — Shareholder

Mr. Winid

Mr. Wirat

: Expressed his opinion that if there were cross currency swap contracts,
they must be booked with Mark to Market the values of those derivatives
as at 31 December. They must also be categorized as gain or loss on
unrealized or unsettled cross currency swap contracts. When they were
carried to 2009, valuation of those contracts as at 31 December was
necessary in order to estimate gain or loss which was unrealized. This
was the same as realized gain on cross currency swap contracts but no
real figures occurred. The shareholder therefore believed that there must
be such contracts and their gain or loss must be reported with remarked
as unrealized.

He then asked further on a question from a shareholder regarding the loss
on hedge of crack spread. And the Management had already answered
that it was because of forward contracts. The Company had refinery
business whose profit depended on crack spread between crude oil and
petroleum products, but emphasized that it was about the selling.
Normally, when short position was opened, there must be long position
closing. The shareholder was wondering the period during the short
position opening and the long position closing, how long it was, and how
often in doing the crack spread hedging. Furthermore, as informed earlier
that the Company did the hedging at approximately 20% of total
capacity, and the rest 80% were real selling, he would like to know the
exact quantity of hedging per year because there was a huge loss on this
item.

: As knowledge sharing to shareholders, he explained that in booking of
this item, accounting standards in Thailand at present did not require
Mark to Market. It was optional, i.e. we could use either Mark to Market
or As Incurred, meaning to record the transaction only when it was
realized. The latter could be used as optional method according to
accounting standards in Thailand presently. Both methods could be used.
This information was for correct understanding on accounting standards
and for knowledge of all shareholders to avoid misunderstanding.

: Added on hedging that in 2008 the Company did the hedging about
20% of total products and on 2 main products: jet oil and diesel oil. The
Company had done for 12 months to cover 2008. In fact, the Company
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had started since 2007 to cover the whole year of 2008 by doing in
average amount in each quarter.

Mr. Tara Cholpranee — Shareholder

Mr. Wirat

. As mentioned that the Company did the hedging to cover the whole
year, he would like to know the process of short position opening and
long position closing. For example, starting at the end of 2007, when was
the long position closed? And as mentioned that the hedging was done
quarterly, were the positions closed at the same time at the end of three
month period?

: Explained that the Company did not do all hedging for 12 month-
period. In quarter 4 of 2007, the hedging was done for quarters 1, 2, 3
and 4 of 2008. The longest contract of last year was therefore 12 month
period. In quarter 4 of 2007, the Company sold forward contract of crack
spread for quarter 4 of 2008. When was the contract closed? It was
closed when it was due, for instance, the 12 month period contract was
due in quarter 4 last year, and therefore, settled at that time. The price
level in the contract and the market was compared, and then settled the
payment of the differentials. The gain/loss as mentioned here was real
transaction. The Company’s policy, for example, last year was to do at
25%, was to enhance our opportunities to achieve the target according to
our corporate plan. The Company did not do the hedging in higher
quantity in order to limit the risk in not being able to run or deliver
product according to contract. The Company could surely perform
because we locked only 20% of total products.

Mr. Tara Cholpranee — Shareholder

Mr. Wirat

: Thaioil refinery could produce major products such as jet oil, diesel,
and gasoline. The production of diesel was approximately 65% and
gasoline 30%. As mentioned earlier that the Company did the hedging at
20-25% of the products, he would like to know whether it was 20-25% of
100% or of 65%.

: Answered that it was 20% of 100% or total products. When considering
each product, the Company did the hedging for jet oil and diesel at
approximately 40% of jet oil and diesel production.

Mr. Tara Cholpranee — Shareholder

. Further to the notes to financial statements on page 155, significant
transactions for the years 2008 and 2007 with related parties, there were
revenues of major shareholder, subsidiaries, associate, and other related
parties. He had question on the item of major shareholder regarding
purchase-sale of crude oil and feedstock for legal reserve, with a “*”
mark. In the consolidated financial statements, in 2008 the figures
showed 11,414 million baht plus while in 2007 there was only 3,729
million baht. Under the item of subsidiaries, there was purchase-sale of
crude oil and feedstock for legal reserve as well, but in the separate
financial statements, at 1,835 million baht and 2,151 million baht. Lastly,
other related parties, there was purchase-sale of crude oil and feedstock
for legal reserve, but only in 2007 at 7,169 million baht, no figures in
2008. He would like to know how these transactions were interrelated.
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Mr. Pichai

: The question included 2 points. First, during the year Thaioil sold
petroleum products to the major shareholder, which meant PTT. Thus,
this selling transaction was the sale of oil to PTT due to the fact that PTT
did not have its own refinery, only its subsidiaries had.

The second point, in purchasing crude oil and feedstock, PTT — as a
major importer of crude oil and a purchaser of local crude oil — sold
crude oil to Thaioil and other refineries. This transaction indicated how
much Thaioil purchased crude from PTT. At the same time, subsidiaries,
meaning thaioil’s subsidiaries, appeared in the column of separate
financial statements. That was because these statements considered only
Thaioil to show quantity of purchasing and selling transactions that
Thaioil had with its subsidiaries. But these transactions did not appear in
the separate financial statements because they had balanced it out.
Therefore, the “-” mark was put there. There were purchase and sale
when considering each company separately, but they must be
disappeared when consolidated.

Mr. Tara Cholpranee — Shareholder

Mr. Pichai

: Said that from what had been clarified, it sounded like the purchase and
sale of crude oil and feedstock were done in commercial way. But there
was an additional message “for legal reserve” that confused him.

. Clarified that normally for PTT, Thaioil, and every refinery, there was a
legal requirement to reserve crude oil for not less than 5% of total annual
production. Thus, if the Company produced 365 days, it must reserve for
18-19 days. Every refinery must reserve at the required level. Whenever
the government came to check, the reserve must be found at above the
required level. Practically, the business had purchase and sale all the
time, some refineries might have insufficient reserve from time to time,
and some might have an excess. Those with an excess might sell the
crude to and make the reserve for those who had less, and putting
together, they would meet the legal requirement.

Mr. Tara Cholpranee — Shareholder

Mr. Pichai

: Asked further on the notes to the financial statements, page 168,
regarding the inventories. There were items of crude oil and feedstock
and others, as well as goods in transit - crude oil, etc. He would like to
know whether the crude oil and feedstock valued at 9,242 million baht
plus had included the legal reserve.

- Answered that it already included the legal reserve.

Mr. Thawatchai Lertroongruang — Shareholder

: Had a question on GRM that in 2007, the GRM was 5.8 USD per barrel
while in 2008, it was 6.4 USD per barrel. He found that the GRM
increased approximately 10%. Market Integrated Margin also increased.
In terms of sales revenue which took into account only the net profit
excluding impact from stock, in 2008 the Company’s profit was 11,400
million baht while in 2007 was 12,500. It could be seen that though the
sales revenue in 2008 increased 50% from 2007, and the stock was
excluded, the Company still had loss. What was the cause of the loss?

-18 -



Mr. Pichai

: Explained that page 70, indicating consolidated results, included
Thaioil refinery, with current capacity 275,000 barrels per day, and its
subsidiaries such as TPX, TLB, and TM. Therefore, the Market GRM
mentioned here considered only the refinery. The shareholder was right
in that if excluding the stock gain/loss, 2008 was slightly better than
2007, i.e. 5.8 and 6.4 USD per barrel respectively. However, oil price
was getting higher when account closed in 2007, the real GRM with
stock gain at 3 USD was therefore 5.8 plus 3 USD, approximately 8 USD
per barrel altogether. But in 2008, although the net profit excluding stock
gain/loss was higher due to increased GRM at 6.4 USD per barrel, or
10%, the stock loss was as high as 14,981 million baht. From the figures,
there must be a loss at 5 USD plus. This meant that there was Market
GRM at 6 USD plus, with stock loss at 5 USD plus, resulting in the
remaining 1 USD plus. While the previous year, the Market GRM was
5.8 USD, plus stock gain at 3 USD, resulting in total 8 USD plus. The
results were on different direction. This was the first point.

The second point, sale revenue could only imply a little. It was less
important than crack spread. When crude oil price was higher, products
price was higher, too. But that was not important. The important thing
was the capacity which was still 275,000 barrels per day. The sales
revenue only indicated that there was an increase in crude oil price and
products price in each year. Anyway, the EBITDA was consolidated
EBITDA as the shareholder understood.

Mr. Adirek Pipatpattama — Shareholder

: Since refinery was the core business of Thaioil, and from the
presentation, the Company was an efficient refinery in the region and
currently running at 106% of the nameplate. But from future projects, it
seemed that the Company had no plan to expand the refinery capacity at
all. The shareholder asked for clarification why there was no plan for
capacity expansion to support future growth.

Managing Director

: Clarified that it did not mean there was no plan. The Management
always kept in mind how to expand the business. However, Thaioil had
expanded the refinery capacity through the revamp of existing units for
several times, and now had no more room to further increase the
capacity. New capacity expansion today meant to build a new refinery,
which would be a huge investment. The world scale at the moment was
500,000 barrels per day. Cost per barrel was not less than 15,000-20,000
USD per barrel. That meant the Company would need approximately
10,000 million USD for the investment, which would be a huge
investment. Therefore, to consider a new investment, the Company must
also consider when the demand in the market would reach 500,000 barrel
per day. The Company would build a new refinery only when it was clear
to have sufficient demand in the future. That was the first point of
consideration, and the Company never stopped thinking.

The second point, the Management had looked for the business growth
by seeking an opportunity to take over a refinery or a related business
which would be in low price at the moment, especially those with low
efficiency. With experience over 40 years the Company could improve or
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turn those refinery or plant into an efficient one. We would never ignore
those chances and, as a Management of the Company, would like to
ensure that the Company always kept the business growth in mind.

Mr. Surasak Korprakong — Shareholder

Mr. Wirat

: Proposed a question on page 4 of the annual report where the net profit
of 2008 was stated at 244 million baht, while on page 70 Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Position, the net profit was stated
224 million baht. These two figures were contrast. When turned to the
financial statements on page 139, trying to figure out whether it was 244
or 224, the item of profit (loss) for the year, under the consolidated
financial statements, showed 559. And a few lines above showed the
figure of 223,570,235 baht, where he was not sure whether it was this
figure. Moreover, the alignment of item descriptions and the figures were
quite uneven. He therefore asked for confirmation of the correct figure,
whether it was 223. If so, why was not 559? The abbreviated annual
report also had the same issue.

. Confirmed that the correct figure was 224 million baht, and apologized
for the mistake. The figure on page 4-5 was incorrect, and the correct one
was 224 million baht. And as referred to page 139, the figure 233.5 or
224 million baht was correct. The reason why it was not 559 million baht
was that the minority interest, which was associated with other
companies especially in TP and IPT, was excluded.

Mr. Surasak Korprakong — Shareholder

Mr. Wirat

: Asked on page 70 where it stated that the impact from stock loss in
2008 was -11,211 million baht. He tried to find this figure on page 139,
but it was not shown. In terms of accounting principles, on which item
should it be located? The consolidated financial statements and the
separate financial statements showed only net loss on crack spread swap
contracts. He was not sure if they were the same. From what the
chairman had explained, they should not be the same item. For more
understanding, he then asked for clarification where it should be stated.

: Clarified that the statements of income on page 139 was disclosed
under the accounting standards. Stock loss was included in the cost of
sale. However, the message on page 70 was an explanation that the
Management tried to elaborate the operating results so that it could be
clearly understood. Since the business was based on margin. Thus, the
Company was trying to illustrate the margin and the impact from the
fluctuation of oil price.

Mr. Siriwat Voravetvuthikhun — Proxy holder

Mr. Wirat

: had a question on financial ratios. The Net Debt to Equity was report at
0.7 times. However, from total liabilities being reported at 69,261 million
baht and shareholders’ equity at 63,580 million baht, the ratio should be
over 1 times. Was that another typing error? And further to page 5,
because the figure 244 was incorrect, the graph showing net profit should
be rectified to 224 as well. Please also confirm the debt to equity ratio
whether it was 0.7 or over 1.

- Clarified that the referred figure 0.7 was Net Debt to Equity, i.e. debts
minus cash outstanding. At the end of last year, the Company had cash
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outstanding approximately at 8,000 million baht. 42,000 million baht
minus 8,000 million baht before dividing by Shareholders’ Equity, Net
Debt to Equity was therefore 0.7.

Mr. Siriwat Voravetvuthikhun — Proxy holder
: Suggested that normally listed companies showed this item (debt to
equity ratio). If the Company would like to show the strong financial
position, for more clarification, it should be remarked with “*” to explain
that this item was Net Debt to Equity and was from debts minus cash
outstanding.

Chairman . Agreed with Mr. Siriwat’s suggestion.

Mr. Siriwat Voravetvuthikhun — Proxy holder

: Was glad that the chairman supported him. And asked further on page 4
regarding Stock Data. There was a report of closing price, market
capitalization, dividend payment, and dividend yield. The shareholder
proposed to add share price according to book value for investor
acknowledgement. At present, shareholders might see that Thaioil’s
share price was moving around the book value of the business, which
was a fair market price.

Chairman : Agreed with Mr. Siriwat.

Mr. Siriwat Voravetvuthikhun — Proxy holder
: Made an observation on the separate financial statements showing loss
at approximately 1,500 million baht while the consolidated financial
statements show profit at 559 million baht. He doubted about income tax
in 2008, why the Company had profit from tax instead of paying tax, and
asked for clarification at this point.

Chairman : Replied that it was from mid-year tax payment. The Company made tax
payment during mid-year when it had net profit at 14,000 million baht.
Therefore, the Company had a tax refund at the end of the year. The
chairman then asked the accounting department to clarify.

Mr. Wirat : Confirmed the chairman’s reply. That was from mid-year tax payment
based on mid-year net profit at 14,000 million baht.

Mr. Siriwat Voravetvuthikhun — Proxy holder
: Asked on net foreign exchange loss amount 897 million baht. At the
shareholders meeting last year he raised the issue that Thai baht tended to
be stronger. As an importer, we should gain from strong baht, i.e. we
would pay less. This year, he believed, Thaioil would have foreign
exchange gain. In 2007, the Company had net foreign exchange gain as
high as 1,500 million baht, but had loss in 2008 at almost 900 million
baht. He then asked the Company to clarify what was the mistake. Was it
the same as other oil companies that have a huge oil loss? The Company
should have net foreign exchange gain, but had loss instead.

Mr. Pichai : Answered that Mr. Siriwat was right. This issue needed to be
considered very carefully. And Mr. Siriwat had referred to the loss in
2008 amount 897 million baht and the gain in the previous year amount
1,545 million baht. Mr. Pichai explained that the loss meant weak baht
and strong dollars. The Company had portion of loans in dollars,
meaning that when baht softer from 35 baht to 36 baht, resulting in
foreign exchange loss. The meaning was that when it got weaker such as
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Chairman

from 35 baht to 36 baht or from 34 baht to 35 baht, there would be loss
on borrowings, that was one side which needed to be carefully
considered. Therefore, there would be loss whenever baht depreciated.
Practically, if baht softened from 34 baht to 36 baht or from 35 baht to 36
baht, when the products were sold at ex-refinery, it was referred to the
price in US dollars and multiplied with the exchange rate quoted that
morning. If it was 36 baht, the Company would gain more baht. There
would be loss posted if baht softened in terms of loan but at the same
time there would be gain in sale revenue, but it was not shown. It was
included under the sale revenue, resulting in more sale revenue. To
manage this, the Company tried to have USD loans to correspond with
USD income to keep balance between loss and gain. The Company did
not want to speculate whether it will be gain or loss. But if the Company
was confident that baht would surely soften, it would not borrow in USD
and keep hoping on this, gain on one side and no loss on the other.
Actually, the Company did not want to guess whether it would be a gain
or a loss because it was very difficult to speculate. So the Company tried
to make it even.

: Added that the Company’s income was linked to US dollars. Every
time when dollars appreciated, the Company would have profit, and at
the same time have loss from debts. However, the Company tried to keep
balance between debts and income, and keep close monitoring.

Mr. Nibhat Bhukkanasut — Chairman of the Audit Committee

: Since there were quite a few questions as to why the Company had
foreign exchange loss, he would like to emphasize that Thaioil was not a
currency trader, but an oil trader, which linked to foreign currency. The
contracts that the Company entered were related to 2 issues. Firstly, the
Company must create natural hedge in foreign currency loan to pay for
oil cost thus it would not be affected by the value of dollars. The
Company traded on GRM. So it tried to maintain the GRM to have
constant profit or not less than the target. Therefore, in acquiring new
debts or speculating foreign exchange rate, the Company would forecast
the trend of exchange rate. This was always a major factor in considering
the purchase or setting GRM target. Doing all this, the Company had no
risk in exchange rate speculation. He emphasized that the record of gain
on cross currency swap contracts did not really mean that. They were
actually loan agreements calculated in Thai baht — how much of the
amount, repayment, and settlement during the year — that would be the
matter of profit and loss. The Company was not a currency trader, please
understand that.

Mr. Pramote Libratanasakul — Shareholder

Mr. Wirat

: Had a question on page 137 why short-term loans from financial
institutions increased from 350 million baht to over 7,900 million baht.

- Clarified that it was the outstanding balance of BE (Bill of Exchange)
that the Company issued in quarter 4 to manage expenses. The
outstanding balance was approximately 8,000 million baht. However, in
February the Company had issued a 12,000 million baht bond to repay
those short-term loans.
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Mr. Pramote Libratanasakul — Shareholder
- Asked further to note 16 on page 186 why interest-bearing liabilities
increased from 32,000 million baht to 50,000 million baht.

Mr. Wirat . Replied that the increased liabilities were due to the fact that we had net
loss from operation. At the same time, we had excess cash flows from
operating activities approximately at 8,000 million baht while having
investment cost at 9,600 million baht last year. Therefore, it could be
noticed that the net cash flows were -1,200 million baht. Furthermore,
last year there was dividend payment approximately at 9,000 million
baht. So there was insufficient cash and hence needed to be funded from
additional borrowings, which were done to run business.

Chairman : Added that the Company needed more cash for the operation. For
example, oil price at 40 USD per barrel, it needed 40 USD. When oil
price climbed to 140 USD, it needed money about 3 times higher. Thus,
liabilities might increase during this period. But when oil price dropped,
the liabilities would be reduced little by little, and the Company would
spend excess cash flows instead.

After giving opportunities for shareholders to ask questions and express their opinions
freely and there were no more questions and opinions from the floor. The Chairman,
therefore, proposed that the Meeting consider the resolution for this agenda.

Resolution The Meeting resolved that the Company’s 2008 operating results and
the audited financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2008 be approved with the following votes:

Approved 1,452,195,729 votes, or 98.84%
Disapproved 0 votes,or 0.00%
Abstain 17,116,418 votes, or 1.16%
Agenda 3 To approve the dividend payment for the Company’s 2008 operating
results

The Chairman assigned the Managing Director to report the detail of this agenda to the
Meeting.

The Managing Director reported that in 2008, the Company & its subsidiaries had earned a
consolidated net profit of 224 million baht, equivalent to 0.11 baht per share.

After due consideration, the Board found it appropriate to propose the Meeting to approve
the dividend payment from the Company’s 2008 operating results from January 1 to
December 31, 2008 which would be paid to shareholders at the rate of Baht 2.75 per share
or approximately amounted to Baht 5,610 million. The proposal to the shareholders
meeting was to approve the dividend payment to shareholders, in addition of the interim
dividend that was already paid, at the rate of Bath 1.00 per share, amounted to Baht 2,040
million, on April 22, 2009.

The Board also proposed the Meeting to acknowledge the interim dividend payment that

was paid to shareholders on September 23, 2008 at the rate of Baht 1.75 per share,
amounted to Baht 3,570 million according to the Board’s resolution on August 24, 2008.
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The dividend payment shall be paid out of the retained earnings with 25% Corporate
Income Tax. Whereby, shareholders paying personal income tax shall be entitled to a tax
credit at 25/75 for the received dividend in accordance with Section 47 bis of the Revenue
Code of Thailand.

The Chairman then invited questions and opinions from shareholders. The issues raised by
shareholders are as follows:

Mr. Chakapan Sae-Lee — Shareholder

Mr. Pichai

: Proposed that the Company still had portion of retained earnings with
30% Corporate Income Tax, there would be no benefit to keep it. If the
dividend was paid out of the earnings with 30% Corporate Income Tax,
each shareholder would receive additional tax credit of 0.10 baht. He
believed that all shareholders would like to receive higher tax credit as he
proposed last year. If the Company paid dividend from this portion, the
money saved from tax credit would help stimulating the economy.

. Since the question was the same as last year, he would like to clarify
again. Mr. Chakapan Sae-Lee was right. The dividend of 1 baht being
paid today was from the retained earnings amount of 12,452 million baht.
Where were these earnings from? They were the earnings which the
Company had already paid 30% Corporate Income Tax amount 5,153
million baht, another 2,252 million baht of 25% Corporate Income Tax
paid during the period of listing with SET due to their permission to pay
tax at 25%, and another 4,744 million baht with tax exemption. This
meant that the 12,452 million baht consisted of earnings with tax
payment at 30%, 25%, and 0%. Tax credit principle was that the dividend
payment was made from which group of earnings, the eligible tax credit
must be at the same rate as that portion. Today the Company proposed to
pay from the middle portion of 25% rate, so shareholders were eligible
for 25% tax credit. Mr. Chakapan asked why the Company did not pay
from the 30% portion so that shareholders would get 30% tax credit. The
director agreed, but if it was paid from the 30% portion, there would be
less and less until there was only the 0% group. Then, shareholders who
loved Thaioil with long-term share holding, maybe 5 years ahead, would
not receive tax credit form dividend payment. Paying over appropriate
rate would discourage long-term shareholders, and encourage short-term
shareholders. The average rate today was at 18%, therefore, the Company
decided to pay higher than the average at 25%, meaning that shareholders
could get tax credit from the Revenue Department higher than the
average. The Company believed that it still had chances to make profit
with 25% tax so the Company paid from this portion first. If there would
be changes in the future, we would ask for sympathy. That was to
recapture and to thank shareholders for thorough consideration on this.

Mr. Tara Cholpranee — Shareholder

: Objected Mr. Pichai and referred to the message in the minutes of the
Meeting last year that Mr. Pichai replied to Mr. Chakapan, page 14 of the
invitation documents. Mr. Pichai repled “...if the dividend was paid from
earnings with high tax rate first, the remainder would be those earnings
with tax-free. This would be unfair to long-term shareholders because
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there would be no tax credit for them. The best way was to use weighted
average...” And further reply on page 15 “...the majority fell on the
25%, therefore, 25% was selected. This way was to reward long-term
shareholders as well, because they would get tax credit for dividend in
the future.” Mr. Pichai’s answers sounded to encourage long-term share
holding, and it was repeated a moment ago. The shareholder objected
that. The dividend payment consisted of 2 parts. The first part was the
retained earnings which were still kept in Thaioil. The other was the tax
already paid to the government. They were 2 different parts. For the
portion that kept in Thaioil, no matter the tax was paid at 30%, 25%, or
0% from BOI, it was the same amount with no effect to Thaioil. The part
that had effects was that of Corporate Income Tax that was already paid
to the government. It was the earnings that should be returned to
shareholders, but the Company paid to the government for their uses. In
fact, that money belonged to shareholders, and had not been credited to
shareholders who were entitled to receive tax credit. This was a problem.
It might not seem a large amount, but if we considered last year’s figures
as presented in the annual report, the first part was those paying 30% tax,
amount 3,465 million baht. Suppose that from this amount of over 3,000
million baht, there was tax payment at 30%. It meant that 3/7 of this
amount, or approximately 1,500 million baht, was at the government and
must be refunded to shareholders who were eligible to receive tax credit.
However, the Company did not try to assert shareholders’ rights, but
instead, allowed the government to spend shareholders’ money. If this
amount of 1,500 million baht was paid to shareholders and they
deposited to the banks, based on basic interest at 1%, there would be
returns about 15 million baht per year. Some shareholders might deposit
into debt securities or others with 5% interest, the returns would be as
high as 80 or 100 million baht. Do not forget that the money generated
accumulating interest. As long as the Company kept this amount, the
government would keep on using that fund while shareholders who
deserved the accumulating interest from that 1,500 million baht lost their
opportunity every year. Therefore, it would be more useful if it was paid
to shareholders today. Furthermore, as mentioned that it was for the sake
of long-term shareholders, no matter when they received the dividend, it
was the same amount of money. However, present value and future value
would be the case. If it was paid today, the future value that shareholders
received from tax credit would be higher. But if it was paid in the future,
when calculating backward, the present value would be less. What Mr.
Pichai had explained was logically right to encourage long-term
shareholders, but in fact shareholders would lose their benefit for 1,500
million baht. The accumulating interest would be lost as well. He agreed
with Mr. Chakapan to pay more or all from the 30% portion. The money
was paid to shareholders and belonged to shareholders, how the
shareholders are going to make use of it would be for direct benefits to
them. This would keep shareholders to hold shares in long term and
would not throw the shares away because at least they would receive tax
credit, there might be some of the 30% or 25% left. But if it was kept
there and the 1,500 million baht was in the government’s hand, it would
be devalued when paid in the future. That was the problem.
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Mr. Pichai

: Replied that he agreed with Mr. Tara almost all points. If the money
that had been collected by the government was credited, it was certain
that what received today must be better. When considering present value,
that which was early received would be better. However, the
shareholders were requested to understand that the earnings in Thaioil’s
account included earnings with Corporate Income Tax at 30%, 25% and
0%. In the government’s view, shareholders also received benefit on the
portion that did not pay tax. The best way was to be strict to the average
rate. For instance, last year the average was 18%. Actually, the Company
should pay at the average, but due to comments from shareholders the
Company decided to pay at 25% which was higher than the average. Mr.
Wirat also asked for advice and the director said that in fact it should be
paid because that was what the Company earned. It was the same to the
government’s point of view. As a result, it should be paid at 18% but the
Company decided to pay at 25% because it was the major components in
the structure. Therefore, paying higher than the average would be
beneficial to shareholders. But if it was paid at 30% this year, there
would be none of it for next year. And there would be no tax credit for
dividend payment in the next years. In the Company’s point of view, it
should pay from what had been earned on pro-rata basis. But today the
Company decided to pay higher than the pro-rata according to the above
reason.

Mr. Aroon Niramolparadee - Shareholder

: Commented that most attendees in the meeting today were
shareholders, and tried to protect shareholders’ benefit. However, what
had been proposed sounded that the Company was taking care of the
government’s benefit without care of shareholders. Paying dividend from
the 25% portion or 18% portion would not have any impact to the
Company, but it was shareholders who gained or lost that benefit. Was
the Board of Directors protecting shareholders’ benefit? As previously
mentioned by shareholders, paying from the 30% portion would be no
effect to the Company as well as the government because the law did not
require duplicate tax payment. The tax paid was correct, because
shareholders who were individual persons paying tax as required by the
government. Saying that The Company would keep the 30% portion
without definite plan as to when to pay from this portion, the Company
might keep it on and on, and shareholders’ benefit would be stuck there.
The Board should regard shareholders’ benefit as major priority.

Mr. Siriwat Voravetvuthikhun — Proxy holder

: Agreed with the shareholders. However, he had the point that it was
better than no dividend payment at all. From the figure, the Company had
earnings per share at 0.11 baht, but dare to pay as high as 2.75 baht i.e.
the 1.75 baht interim dividend without knowing that there would be huge
stock loss at the end of the year at 11,000 million baht. The Company
still dared to propose the Meeting to pay additional 1 baht. He believed
that shareholders would agree for the payment because they would
receive cash. Shareholders who were talking about tax credit also had
their point. However, he would like to inform the Chairman regarding
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this agenda that the dividend payment this time might be the highest
record of dividend payout ratio in global stock markets because the ratio
was as high as 2,500%. Please keep the record, maybe the Guinness
World Record, because it would not be found anywhere else. Thus,
minor shareholders were pleased, but the happiest would be PTT because
PTT was the major shareholder at 49% and would receive approximately
1,000 million baht. A moment ago, as Mr. Pichai mentioned about
encouraging long-term share-holding, shareholders must of course hold
shares in long term because the highest price on December 31, 2007 was
around 96 baht. Mr. Pichai did not need to be worried, we must hold in
long term for sure. The one who did not have to worry was PTT because
their cost was 10 baht. Please correct if it was wrong, Mr. Prasert. Mr.
Prasert from PTT was sitting and always smiling. Let minor shareholders
object, but PTT was smiling. Many shareholders here holding PTT shares
were also smiling. If there was no dividend payment, PTT would lose
their income for 1,000 million baht. He would suggest not to debate on
this because it would be paid anyway. PTT would approve for sure. But
he was worried that there would be no interim dividend this year. The
Board of Directors proposed shareholders to approve, he was confident
that they would approve certainly because they would get cash, but what
about September this year? He was afraid that shareholders would not
receive interim dividend and it would be bad records of Thaioil. That was
what he concerned. The price of Thaioil’s stocks would be high or low
according to the situation. Today, if it was not wrong, the price of
Thaioil’s stocks was not 20 baht but 40 baht. The Board had mentioned
that the Company had stock loss at market price, when Marked to Market
at 41 USD. Dubai crude price today should be approximately 51 USD.
Therefore, there should be stock gain, not stock loss, no matter how
much. What he concerned and must be recorded, the interim dividend
must not be paid from the retained earnings again. In case that there was
no interim dividend, the Company should inform no interim dividend
payment. Stock price might fall, let it fall. The Company had already
paid from the retained earnings over 2,000 million baht. This was good
intention to the Board so that the Board would not be complained and
Thaioil would not have bad records.

Mr. Prasert Bunsumpun — Member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee
. Explained that PTT was like other shareholders, wanted to see the
Company making good profit and providing suitable returns to
shareholders. The point that shareholders raised regarding from which
portion of earnings the dividend should be paid, the Board would take all
comments into consideration next time. This time was proposed as
presented here. He also agreed that the dividend payout ratio at over
2,000% of Earnings per Share might be the highest world record. But that
clearly expressed Thaioil’s intention to take care of shareholders, not
only PTT. As a major shareholder, PTT received the same as minor
shareholders. Therefore, he believed that the dividend payment would be
approved. From his attendance in AGM of various companies, the issue
of tax credit was always raised. The Company tried to balance the cash to
be paid out of earnings with different tax rates. Shareholders wanted the
Company to pay from the rate that they would obtain higher tax credit.
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The issue was discussed thoroughly. Each company had different policies
and tried to explain to their shareholders. However, he agreed with the
last statement that the Company had paid the dividend and in higher rate
than anybody would have expected. Regarding the interim dividend this
year, it would be considered after the first half performance was
available. The performance this year tended to be better than last year.
Whether to pay dividend or interim dividend would be considered
carefully by the Management and the Board of Directors so that the
Company could continue its business and take good care of all
shareholders, not only PTT. No matter how, PTT would stay with the
Company forever because the investment in Thaioil was for long-term
purpose.

Mr. Chakapan Sae-Lee — Shareholder

Mr. Pichai

: Proposed 3 issues as follows:

1) If Thaioil paid from the 30% portion, PTT would have additional cash
in the 30% portion over 1,000 million baht, and could subsequently pay
to their shareholders from the 30% portion.

2) Every director must consider shareholders’ benefit as major principle
because they were not officers of the Revenue Department. They were
not responsible for making profit to the government. They should help to
bring the money out of the Revenue Department. In the future, if they
would announce a regulation on dividend payment to be paid according
to actual ratio from total unappropriated retained earnings, then we would
follow the regulation. Let the Revenue Department issue the regulation, it
would be fine. But that was the future matter. As mentioned earlier that
present value would be higher so distribute it out early would be more
beneficial.

3) He would like to complain Mr. Pichai. The shareholder attended the
AGM of several companies such as PTTCH, PTTAR. They all paid the
dividend from earnings with the highest Corporate Income Tax first and
followed by the lower rate. Mr. Pichai was a director in 4 companies but
why there were double standards. When the shareholder proposed at
PTTCH and PTTAR to pay in order from the highest to the least, why
Mr. Pichai did not object while at Thaioil Mr. Pichai always objected that
it would be unfair to current shareholders — we must be fair to
shareholders in the future. So he was confused because the present was
bonded to the world of the future.

: Answered that it depended on whether we wanted the remaining
amount of dividend to have no credit value. This was one thing. Each
company had different way of thinking and different structure. Some
might have plenty of earnings with the highest tax rate, which was near
or higher than the average if paid to shareholders, so they decided to pay
from that portion. Some might have plenty of BOI exempt, and therefore
paid from this portion. However, all of them tried to pay higher than the
average to ensure that what had been paid was higher than what the
companies earned. That was how they thought. Every company tried to
consider their own portfolio. If it was truly agreed, it could be set as a
policy for every company to pay average.
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After giving opportunities for shareholders to ask questions and express their opinions
freely and there were no more questions and opinions from the floor. The Chairman,
therefore, proposed that the Meeting consider the resolution for this agenda.

Resolution 1) The Meeting acknowledged the interim dividend payment of Baht
1.75 per share which was equivalent to Baht 3,570 million paid to
shareholders on September 23, 2008 according to the Board of
Directors Meeting’s resolution on August 24, 2008.

2) The dividend payment of Baht 2.75 per share to shareholders of
the Company be approved. After deduction of the interim dividend
at the rate of Baht 1.75 per share which was already paid to
shareholders, the remaining dividend at the rate of Baht 1.00 per
share will be paid on April 22, 2009. The resolution comprised the
following votes:

Approved 1,456,335,630 votes, or 99.12%
Disapproved 75,100 votes,or  0.00%
Abstain 12,903,918 votes,or 0.88%
Agenda 4 To approve the 2009 annual remuneration of the Company’s
Directors

The Chairman assigned the Managing Director to present the detail of this agenda to the
Meeting.

The Managing Director informed the Meeting that Section 90 of the Public Company
Limited Act B.E. 2535 (1992), and Article 23 of the Articles of Association of the
Company provided that directors were eligible for remuneration in forms of reward,
meeting fee, pension, bonus or other remunerations according to the resolutions of the
Meeting by more than two-thirds of shareholders present at the Meeting and entitled to
vote.

The Board of Directors, with recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, had thoroughly considered the remuneration of the Company’s directors and
all appropriate factors with reference to remunerations of directors in the same industry,
current economic situations, and the Company’s net profit. After due consideration, the
Board found it appropriate to propose the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders to
approve the remuneration of the Company’s directors as follows:

1. Monthly Fees
A) For the Company’s Directors

- Chairman 75,000 Baht/Month
- Directors 60,000 Baht/Month
B) For Board Committees: Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, and Corporate Governance Committee
- Chairman 31,250 Baht/Month
- Directors 25,000 Baht/Month
The monthly fees above were the same rate as the previous year.
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2. Bonus for the 2008 operating results paid to Directors who served the Company in 2008
and those who resigned and/or retired by rotation during 2008, total amount of 25
million baht. The bonus proportion was calculated based on the term of each director.
Bonus for Chairman of the Board shall be 25% higher than that of Directors.

The Chairman then invited questions and comments from shareholders. The issues raised
by shareholders are as follows:

Mr. Chatri Charoennuang — Shareholder

: Asked about the criteria for granting 25 million baht of bonus to
directors, when in fact, the Company only made about 200 million baht
of profit. Last year, the Company posted more than 10,000 million bath
of profit and the directors only received 50 million baht of bonus. He
questioned the Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee about the criteria the committee adopted to come up with this
figure.

Chakramon Phasuvanich — Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
: Explained that the directors and all staff had worked very hard last year
as the market condition was quite volatile. The 1% part of the
remuneration was considered based on the profit and the 2" part was
based on work performance. Last year the directors had worked together
to support and guide the Company’s operation. The Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors had considered and
agreed that the remuneration was reasonable. Comparing with other
remunerations either on other administration or even dividend payment,
they were all comparable. The main point was the performance of board
of directors, which was the major reason. As we all realized last year was
a tough year and the profit declined significantly. It was believed that 25
million baht per year rate, which was largely reduced from last year, was
reasonable rate. There had been a lot of discussions and in the end
everyone agreed that the proposed amount was appropriate.

Mr. Chatri Charoennuang — Shareholder
: Commented and said that as a minor shareholder, he had no objection.
However, he would like to ask for an explanation on the figure the
company used as basis for remuneration calculation. For example, last
year the company made a lot of profit but only proposed for 50 million
baht, this year however, the profit was only 224 million baht and the
directors proposed for 25 million baht. He did not object but would like
to know the specific criteria, for example, was it 0.3% of net profit or of
dividend.

Mr. Prasert . Explained and added to the NRC chairman’s explanations that normally
the bonus system for Company directors in Thailand was linked with 2
factors, which were, the dividend as applied in some banks and
companies in certain industries, for example, they would pay 0.5% or 1%
of dividend. The other was linked to the net profit which could be 1% or
0.5%, some companies might put a cap on because 1% or 0.5% might be
too much, for example, PTT, PTTEP and Bangchak.

In the energy sector, bonus had normally been linked to the net profit,
some might have ceiling and some might not as considered appropriate.
In some cases, if no cap was imposed, the bonus might exceed 100
million and could be too astounding for shareholders because Thailand
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was quite different from abroad where directors’ bonus solely depended
on the company’s performance.

2008 was a highly volatile year with many unexpected events. The
company was not expected the dividend payout ratio to be at 2500%, the
normal rates had been around 30%, 40% or 50% but not 2500%.
Considering this year dividend, the Company paid 2.75 baht per share or
amounted at 5,600 million baht. So if the bonus was linked to the
dividend, and with the criteria, such as 0.5% and 0.4% of dividend
payment was used, the bonus will be around 25 million baht. On the
other hand, if directors’ bonus was linked to the net profit, it would be
much lower. This matter had been carefully considered as fair and
appropriate.

This year, the company made about 220 million baht of profit and
proposed for 25 million baht of directors’ bonus which was 50% lower
than the year before. When the bonus was compared with the net profit, it
seemed to be a large amount, but when compared with the dividend
payment, it was not high, considering that the dividend was also
decreased.

This was a good combination because it was a very unusual year.
Excluding the unexpected factors like a sudden decline of oil price from
140-150 USD to 40 USD within 2 months, which tumbled globally
including Thailand and also large enterprises, Thaioil today still had
profit and if the unexpected factors were excluded, Thaioil would have
made around 10,000 million baht of profit. And if the criteria of 0.4% or
0.5% was used, it would be a much larger amount of money. However, it
could not possibly be calculated that way, because the actual profit made
was around 200 million as caused unusual events.

For 2009, if the profit was low and the ratio of bonus to net profit
appeared to be excessively high, then it would not be proposed. But last
year was an unusual year with unusual dividend payment, in 20009,
everything would return to normal as it was foreseen that the world
economic crisis would remain throughout 2009 and 2010, however, 2010
should be better than 2009. This was to inform the background of the
proposal which was achieved through the consideration of various
aspects not only on single and specific one.

The bonus system for most energy companies was usually linked to net
profit; however, if the amount turned out to be too high, it could be
adjusted as deemed appropriate. It did not mean that if the net profit was
very large, the bonus would increase accordingly without limits. There
was ceiling.

The last point as to why directors should be granted bonus was that when
comparing Thaioil to other refineries in Thailand, Thaioil was the only
refinery that made profit, other refineries realized a net loss. Those
refineries could not propose to pay directors’ bonus but they still paid
dividend to shareholders for sake of the shareholders who bought the
shares at a high price, not PTT. The shareholders did not expect that the
share price would fall significantly and they all had expectation that
refinery shares must pay dividend. Therefore PTTAR paid dividend,
IRPC paid dividend in spite of their loss. And so did Bangchak. It had
been discussed and debated on whether or not the dividend and the
directors’ bonus should be paid and at what amount. In the end, the board
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of directors had carefully considered and agreed that the directors had
taken part in managing and supporting the Company until the Company
was able to remain profitable despite the world economic crisis. In term
of dividend, the Company was able to pay a large amount of dividend. If
one asked how the company had come up with the figure, it could be
explained that it was carefully considered from many aspects, not only
one because 2008 was a very unusual year.

Mr. Chatri Charoennuang — Shareholder
: Thanked for the explanation.

After giving opportunities for shareholders to ask questions and express their opinions
freely and there were no more questions and opinions from the floor. The Chairman,
therefore, proposed that the Meeting consider the resolution for this agenda.

Resolution The Meeting, by more than two-thirds of the total number of votes
cast by the shareholders presented and entitled to vote, resolved to
approve the remuneration of the Company’s directors for the year
2009 and bonus for the 2008 operating results as proposed. The
resolution comprised the following votes:

Approved 1,432,435,590 votes,or 97.50%
Disapproved 23,886,600 votes, or 1.63%
Abstain 12,996,458 votes, or 0.88%
Agenda 5 To approve the 2009 annual appointment of auditors and

determination of their Remuneration

The Chairman assigned the Managing Director to present the detail of this agenda to the
Meeting.

The Managing Director informed the Meeting that Section 120 of the Public Company
Limited Act B.E. 2535 (1992) provided that auditors must be appointed and their
remuneration determined at the annual general meeting. The same auditors were eligible
for re-appointment.

After due consideration, with recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board found it
appropriate to propose the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders to appoint auditors
from KPMG Phoomchai Audit Ltd., which is also the audit office of the Company’s
subsidiaries, as the Company’s auditors in 2009. One of the following auditors may audit
and express their opinions towards the Company’s financial statements.

1. Mr. Winid Silamongkol Certified Public Accountant Registration No. 3378 or
2. Mr. Charoen Phosamritlert Certified Public Accountant Registration No. 4068 or
3. Mr. Vairoj Jindamaneepitak Certified Public Accountant Registration No. 3565

The nominated auditors do not have any relationship and/or conflict of interest with the

Company, subsidiaries, managements, major shareholders or related persons of the said
parties.
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The Board also found it appropriate to propose the Meeting to approve the 2009
remuneration for quarterly and year-end audits at the same rate as last year which is
illustrated below:

1. Audit Fee
- Quarterly and year-end Audit Fees amount 2,290,000 Baht
- Other expenses which cover miscellaneous expenses during work period such as
traveling, documentation and facsimile expenses are capped at not more than 10% of
total fees
2. Non-Audit Fee
- Fees for review the compliance with condition of the BOI promotion certificates at
75,000 Baht each

The Chairman again invited questions and comments from shareholders, but there was
none. He, therefore, requested the Meeting to consider the resolution for this agenda.

Resolution The Meeting resolved that the appointment of KPMG Phoomchai
Audit Ltd. with:

(1) Mr. Winid Silamongkol, or
(2) Mr. Charoen Phosamritlert, or
(3) Mr. Vairoj Jindamaneepitak

as the Company’s auditors in 2009 be approved. The total
remuneration for the quarterly and year-end audits is Baht
2,290,000 with out of pocket expenses capped at not more than 10%
of the total fee, and non-audit fee, i.e. fee for review the compliance
with condition of the BOI promotion certificates at 75,000 Baht each.

Approved 1,456,342,230 votes,or 99.12%
Disapproved 34,900 votes, or 0.00%
Abstain 12,941,518 votes, or 0.88%
Agenda 6 To approve the 2009 annual election of new directors in replacement

of retiring directors

Before starting the agenda, the Chairman asked the retiring directors to leave the meeting
room and return when the consideration of this agenda completed.

Then the Chairman reported that Section 70 and 71 of the Public Company Limited Act
B.E. 2535 (1992), and Article 17 and 18 of the Articles of Association of the Company
provided that the terms of one-third of the directors must expire each year at the annual
general meeting. The directors whose terms had expired were eligible for re-election.

At the 2009 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, one-third of total number of
Directors, amounted to 5 directors, shall be retired by rotation, namely:

(1) Mr. Chakramon Phasukavanich  Independent Director and Chairman of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee

(2) Mr. Nibhat Bhukkanasut Independent Director and Chairman of the
Audit Committee
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(3) Mr. Prajya Phinyawat Director and Member of the Corporate

Governance Committee

(4) Mr. Nit Chantramonklasri Independent Director and Member of the Audit
Committee
(5) Mr. Pichai Chunhavajira Director

The Company has announced on our website providing an opportunity to shareholders to
nominate candidate(s) with qualifications required by the Public Company Limited Act,
laws governing securities and stock exchange, and the Company’s corporate governance
policy to be elected as Directors, and 5 candidates were nominated.

The Board of Directors, with recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, thoroughly considered the qualifications of these 5 candidates according to
the nomination procedure and found it appropriate to propose the Meeting to approve the
election of new directors as follows:

(1) Mr. Pichai Chunhavajira proposed for re-election

(2) Mr. Prajya Phinyawat proposed for re-election

(3) Mr. Utid Tamwatin proposed for Independent Director
(4) Mr. Manu Leopairote proposed for Independent Director
(5) Mr. Naris Chaiyasoot proposed for Director

The Chairman then invited questions and comments from shareholders. The issues raised
by shareholders are as follows:

Mr. Chatri Charoennuang — Shareholder

Resolution

: Proposed that the voting tickets be collected in one time for time
saving, and the voting results be announced one by one. Other companies
also did the same way and the attendees agreed to do so.

The Meeting resolved that the election of new directors to replace
those who retired by rotation be approved as follows:

(1) Mr. Pichai Chunhavajira, with the following votes:

Approved 1,366,856,696 votes, or 93.03%
Disapproved 48,241,487 votes, or 3.28%
Abstain 54,220,465 votes, or 3.69%
(2) Mr. Prajya Phinyawat, with the following votes:
Approved 1,390,302,966 votes,or 94.62%
Disapproved 26,996,417 votes, or 1.84%
Abstain 52,019,265 votes, or 3.54%
(3) Mr. Utid Tamwatin, with the following votes:
Approved 1,390,266,066 votes, or 94.62%
Disapproved 27,038,417 votes, or 1.84%
Abstain 52,014,165 votes, or 3.54%
(4) Mr. Manu Leopairote, with the following votes:
Approved 1,390,250,366 votes,or 94.62%
Disapproved 27,027,417 votes, or 1.84%
Abstain 52,040,865 votes, or 3.54%
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(5) Mr. Naris Chaiyasoot, with the following votes:

Approved 1,390,294,466 votes,or 94.62%
Disapproved 27,011,417 votes, or 1.84%
Abstain 52,012,765 votes, or 3.54%

Agenda 7 To consider and approve the issuance of debentures

The Chairman assigned the Managing Director to present the detail of this agenda to the
Meeting.

The Managing Director informed the Meeting that Section 145 of the Public Company
Limited Act B.E. 2535 (1992), and Article 37 of the Articles of Association of the
Company provided that the Company’s offering and issuance of debenture must be
approved by the Meeting with more than three-fourths (3/4) of shareholders present at the
Meeting and entitled to vote.

The Managing Director clarified the reasons and necessity to ask for approval from the
shareholders meeting so that the Company could offer and issue debentures for domestic
and foreign investors in the aggregate amount of 500 million USD or its equivalence when
needed. The currency, tenor, interest rate, and other conditions will be determined based
upon the prevailing market conditions. Each debenture issuance, for the purposes of
financing the company’s general business purposes, capital projects and expenditures, debt
repayment and refinancing, will be subject to the Board’s approval.

The Chairman then invited questions and comments from shareholders. The issues raised
by shareholders are as follows:

Mr. Siriwat Voravetvuthikhun — Proxy holder
: Disagreed with the proposal to issue US dollar debentures. The first
reason, there was surplus liquidity in commercial banks for several
hundred thousand million baht. The Company had failed in foreign
exchange management as discussed earlier. Despite high expertise, still
fail in managing foreign exchange. The Company purchased and sold oil,
natural hedge is right. Today, however, there was plenty of liquidity in
the country, why not borrow in Thai baht from Thai banks. Why taking
risk while there was plenty of baht to borrow. One of the Company’s
directors, Mr. Apisak Tantivorawong, was the President of Krung Thai
Bank. He could confirm Thaioil with hundred thousand million baht loan
at low interest. The proposal for 500 million baht was not right, but
should be specified the amount in baht, e.g. 15,000 — 20,000 million baht
and issued from time to time as the committee would consider
appropriate. Doing this way, shareholders would support and the
Company would not take risks. In addition, shareholders might blame the
Board and the Management in the future. That was the reason why he
had to make the point. Let the government loan from abroad. The
Company had many chances to obtain loan from local banks so there was
no need to borrow in US dollars. In 1997, there was a huge crisis, but
should we do the same? Actually in 1997, Thaioil was not listed in the
SET and almost broke as well. Luckily, the Company had good
management. Then it was listed and kept growing. Today the Company
was able to pay dividend and had a huge amount of retained earnings. He
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Chairman

therefore disagreed to approve the amount of debentures at 500 million
USD or its equivalence, but proposed to specify exact amount in Thai
baht.

. Clarified the point that the shareholder mentioned that the Company
had failed in managing foreign exchange resulting in loss. The Company
would not accept that it was mistakes in foreign exchange management
because the Company’s business was in natural hedge. The second point,
the Company’s income was in US dollars, therefore, the amount of
debenture issuance was proposed in US dollars or its equivalence.
However, it did not mean that the Company would issue a US dollar
bond. The Company had lately issued a Baht bond. The proposal was
intended to specify equivalent amount, but not to issue specifically in
USD.

Mr. Siriwat Voravetvuthikhun — Proxy holder

Chairman

Mr. Prasert

: Thanked the Chairman and further asked on notes to the financial
statements. Today, the Company had more foreign liabilities than local
liabilities, i.e. foreign liabilities around 27,000 million baht while local
liabilities around 22,000 million baht. The Board said that it was all right
because the business relied on natural hedge. However, it was necessary
to remind the Board because it would be recorded in the minutes of the
meeting, just like that of last year reported here. As mentioned earlier, the
shareholder found no reason to use that money. However, he did not
object this point because the Company traded in US dollars. The
shareholder personally believed that soon the world would not trust US
dollars. All directors here could see that at the moment powerful
countries, for instance, China did not reserve in US dollars, but in
Singapore dollars. He did not want to see the hard work of staff and
directors became useless. If the meeting did not discuss the truth at
present and look into the near future in the world’s view, it would be
useless. Thank you.

. Accepted the comment noted and reconfirmed that the 500 million USD
was intended to specify the debenture amount, not specifically to issue
500 million USD bond; and that the Company would control local and
foreign liabilities to ensure natural hedge.

: Added that the comment from Mr. Siriwat was a very good suggestion.
The director himself always reminded the Board that although there were
2 sides, the Company must consider carefully. Currently, people
forecasted that baht would weak while dollars maintained its strength.
But eventually, it might be the opposite, dollars might weak and baht
might get stronger. As a result, in dealing with currency, whether USD or
baht, loan from banks or issue corporate bonds, he agreed that there was
liquidity in the country. If the Management wanted to acquire loan in
USD, it would be quite difficult and the interest would be high. It would
be difficult. Even Thailand wanted to get a USD loan today, it would not
be easy, even the government. The shareholders’ opinion would be taken
in the minutes of the meeting. The director was also aware of this point.
The overall picture of PTT and companies in the group, we also
discussed that there was plenty of liquidity in Thailand and there would
be no risk in foreign exchange rate. We tried to maximize our
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opportunity as much as we could. On the other side where the income
was realized in USD, the Company also tried to be aware of what the
shareholder had commented, which was a good comment and in line with
our view. But the proposal today, instead of indicating in baht amount, it
was indicated in USD or its equivalence. Actually, if it was considered
more carefully and indicated vice versa, shareholders would be more
comfortable. To loan in USD today, everyone would say that the interest
was high and would be afraid of the same problem as in 1997. The
Company was afraid of that problem as well. Therefore, the
shareholder’s opinion would be taken.

Mr. Nibhat Bhukkanasut — Chairman of the Audit Committee

Resolution

Agenda 8

: Added that, regarding the currency issue, he was the one who proposed
the Board to propose to shareholders for approval of debenture amount in
order to be more flexible in the future. We could not specify baht
currency alone. Such proposal was to provide flexibility for any
currency. Regarding the issue of maintaining the currency value, as an in
charge person who negotiated to resolve the problems during the past
crises, it was something that everyone in Thaioil realized and bewared of.
What had been raised by the shareholder was in line with what the Board
realized. Actually, he would like to go back and teach the government; if
the government did it wisely to protect the country’s interest and
foundation, and built wealth on the nation’s capability. The potential in
the country could allow us to maintain the value of assets for future
capital reserve. It did not mean that everyone now did not maintain the
value of Thai baht. The Company would take the comment and keep in
mind.

The Meeting, by more than three-fourths of the total number of votes
cast by the shareholders presented and entitled to vote, resolved to
approve the Company to offer and issue debentures as proposed.

The resolution comprised the following votes:

Approved 1,446,597,330 votes,or 98.44%
Disapproved 7,423,900 votes, or 0.51%
Abstain 15,297,418 votes, or 1.04%

Other business

The Chairman informed the Meeting that the Company had made an announcement on the
Company’s website for shareholders to propose other agendas prior to the Meeting, but
there was none. The Chairman then offered the opportunity for shareholders to query and
comment on other issues. The issues raised are summarized as follows:

Mr. Chatri Charoennueng - shareholder

: commented about the afternoon tea, as briefly mentioned earlier in the
first agenda, that if the company was to hold the next AGM at the Army
Club, he proposed that the company should be catered by Siriwat’s
sandwiches. Khun Siriwat could guarantee that there would be enough
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for everyone to enjoy and he thought that sandwiches were better than
cakes or other snacks as they were more filling.

Mr. Siriwat Worawetwuttikhun — Proxy Holder
. thanked Khun Chatri and gave further information that he was now
selling brown-rice sushi. He asked for more supports for brown-rice sushi
as all the brown-rice was local products and bought from the farmers in
Tambol Tamueng, Donmoddang district, Ubolrachathani Province. If the
Company pleased, it would help the farmers.

Ms. Saisunee Srisuworarat — Shareholder

: questioned on 2 issues as follows

1) As the Board of Directors said that the director’s bonus had been
reduced from 50 million to 25 million. She would like to be informed
as to whether there were any other special privileges besides bonus?
Other companies, Thai Airways for example, provided free flights for
directors and their families.

2) Looking at the details of directors’ trainings, some directors had not
passed the 10D training courses. She was not sure it was typing
errors; however, asked whether it was compulsory that all directors
must pass 10D courses.

Managing Director

: clarified the issues as follows

1) Apart from the remunerations approved by shareholders, the
Directors were not entitled for any other privileges. According to the
Company’s Articles of Association, any privileges to be granted to
the directors must be approved by the shareholders first.

2) On the issue about directors’ trainings, the majority of our directors
had completed the trainings from 10D. Moreover, there were other
special trainings, for example, Audit Committee members would
receive training from Audit Committee Program, Corporate
Governance Committee members would attend Corporate
Governance courses and the Chairman will attend the course
specifically designed for Chairman. New directors who had not
received training would be proposed by the Company to attend.
Those who had not received trainings from 10D were the new
directors and the Company intended to gradually enroll them all as
each course had quite a long queue.

Mr. Patana Patanasiri: Proxy holder
. stated that this was his fourth year of coming to Thaioil AGM and it
appeared that this year so many people had been attending the meeting
that the Company had to provide extra seats outside. This had broken the
record of any meeting and could be interpreted in 2 ways. First of all, this
could improve the share prices as many people had shown interest in the
Company and 1,600 people turned up. Secondly, the understanding
between shareholders and the company could improve. If the Company
was going to make something out of this event, he proposed that the
Company set up an association or a shareholders’ club to create
opportunities for better understanding between the 2 parties. He believed
that it would be beneficial to the Company as after listening to the
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comments and opinions from the shareholders, it seemed that they all had
knowledge and expertise of which the Company could make use.

Managing Director

: Thanked the speaker and the point was taken.

Mr.Suvit Aemsinsurb: Proxy Holder

. expressed opinion and questioned about the 2008 financial statement
where the company made a lot of profit during the first 9 month period
when the oil price was on a rise but turned out to realize loss in the last 3
months. The loss, however, was due to stock loss as explained that the
price swiftly dropped from 140 USD per barrel to 40 USD per barrel. He
did not know if the management had been aware of the fact, according to
the analysts, that the oil price would rise until its peak and would drop
significantly. During the 140 USD per barrel period, had the directors
and management done anything to mitigate the risk? This year the oil
price remained around 50 USD per barrel, what did the directors and
management consider what would happen to the oil price, would it go up
or down? He, himself, believed that it depended on the US, after
changing the government from Bush to Democrat the price suddenly
dropped. In 2009, what was the Company’s policy to prevent risk or was
it forecasted that the price would remain around 40-50 USD throughout
the year. If the oil price fell to 20 USD, what were the Company’s plans?
He asked about the risk mitigation plans on how to prevent stock loss but
at the same time not trying to make profit from speculation.

Managing Director

Mr. Prasert

. Explained that the nature of our business was the trading of spread
between crude oil and finished oil. The risk we were trying to prevent
was from unfavourable margins between crude oil and finished oil. We
could not link our business to crude oil or finished products alone
because it would be imbalanced and too risky. The Company was closely
monitoring the oil price 24 hours a day. The data analysis and forecast
were not conducted only by Thaioil, it was performed as a group i.e.
group of refineries, group of exploration and production companies. The
meeting was held weekly; the Company therefore, shared same set of
information, perceived the information in a similar way and looked at a
similar direction. The Company had been very cautious in managing risk
in terms of risk from oil crack spread.

. Further added that within the PTT group, both the refineries and the
petrochemical plants, all had a group policy on risk management. But due
to substantial price fluctuations, it had been very difficult to anticipate
the situation. PTT Group did have actual oil production and actual
trading but it still needed future market to manage risk.

As discussed earlier, the financial statements showed the figure for risk
management in terms of spread between finished oil and crude oil as loss.
This meant that what the Company actually produced was better than
what the Company anticipated, which implied that we made a gain from
our actual production. However, in accounting term, it must be recorded
as loss. The figure in 2008 showed that the company only hedged 20%.
There were discussions that we should hedge even more at 50%. When
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the Company set the budget, what was better than the budget should be
locked, in case it got even better.

In accounting records, it had to be realized as a loss but in actual
production the company had made a gain; a gain received from actual
selling for the finished oil. It would always be 2-sided tie like this
because if we did not manage risk and let the business run according
market mechanism that was when the market was good, it would be very
good; but when the market was poor it would be very poor.

One might say why the Company did not hedge at around the year end.
Towards the end of last year, the situations changed quite quickly and
they were unusual events. Looking back in the last 3-4 years, the oil price
gradually increased from 30-40 USD to 50, 60, 70, 80, 90 USD until
around July last year, it reached more than 100 USD. The price rise took
many Yyears, but the decline only took 2-3 months. Therefore, the market
was too volatile for anyone to react or rectify.

Mr. Chakramon: As an industrial economist, he explained that for industry which was
relating to the commodity market as raw material, not only oil, it could
be iron, copper or agricultural products, those who were in these kinds of
industry must understand that the price always fluctuated. For example,
the current iron price was only half of what it was last year. As a refinery,
even though it was not in the E&P industry, the Company was still the
trader and was linked to the price of raw material that was crude oil.
When the price was volatile, the refineries were hugely impacted, so the
refineries were now closely monitoring this factor. Another reason for
price fluctuations was the speculation in future market for profit making.

Therefore, from now on, regarding the commodity market, the company
must consider and analyze the situation thoroughly. Thaioil had learnt
some good lessons and actually had done better than others. Compared
with other refineries and world standard, other refineries were badly
impacted but Thaioil was still able to pay reasonable dividend and still
made profits. Therefore, what the Company achieved was much better
than average. He stressed, once again, that the commodity markets
around the world would always be alike. On the other hand, for industrial
products, the price would not tumble to one third in just one month.
Hence, those whose business involving commodity products, such as
steel plant or refinery, must be aware of the market’s nature and tried to
manage the business accordingly.

Mr. Thanawat Pinrod — Shareholder
: Suggested on the AGM invitation letter where the opinions of the Board
of Directors on each agenda item was given. However, more information
should be given on the laws and regulations associated with each agenda
item as well, for example, it should be explained that according to the
Public Company Limited Act, this certain agenda item must obtain
certain number of votes in order to obtain resolution. For example, the
voting requirement on agenda item about Directors’ remuneration
explaining that in order to pass the resolution, it must receive two third
votes from all voters, was put on almost the last page and took a very
long time to find. The Articles of Association, attached with the
invitation letter, starts from calling for meeting and item no. 23 on
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Directors was almost on the last page which was quite hard to find. It
would be better if this kind of information could be incorporated into the
invitation letter.

Chaiman : The comments noted.

Mr. Aroon Niramolparadee - Shareholder

: Has suggested that the shareholders received the Annual Report in just a
short period of time before the meeting so having insufficient time to go
through, so it was proposed to add a few pages of additional information
on financial ratios, e.g. Return on Investment, Return on Equity, Return
on Assets, and Account Receivable and Payable Aging. With the
requested information, shareholders would be able to get better
understanding about the business. Financial information for the last 5
years should be given. With the longer term information, the
shareholders would get a clearer picture of the business. As the Company
stated that it had good dividend payment rates, he requested not to
mention too often because each shareholder had already paid for the
shares no matter when they bought it, i.e. 10 years, 5 years ago or just
recently. Those who had bought the shares had already paid for
shareholders’ parts. When dividend was paid, the market price would
drop, and it seemed like shareholders’ money was returned to
shareholders hence it did not mean good.

Then, the Chairman gave the shareholders another opportunity to put forward additional
questions or remarks. Since there were no more questions or comments, the Chairman
thanked all for attending and closed the Meeting respectively.

The Meeting adjourned at 5.40 p.m.

(Mr. Prajya Phinyawat) (Mr. Viroj Mavichak)
Director Managing Director
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am Elﬁﬁ%’wamfuwﬁﬁw%ﬂmsmﬂLLmamﬁLmuiﬁwL%"ﬂ"l,n”nnﬂs:mimuﬁLﬁufmms
(a) To grant my/our proxy to consider and vote on my/our behalf as appropnate in all respects.
(| (V) lnwiuuauauﬂ caanlFIaIATLBUMNANNL Iz IRt IWI a9l
(b) To grant my/our proxy to vote at my/our desire as follows:

O iude O Liviudae O seeanides
Approve Disapprove Abstain
sediguszin 3 fHanaundanisnadniiwaadmiunalsznaunisil 2552
Agenda 3 To approve the dividend payment for the Company’s 2009 operating results

(| (n)Wﬁi"uuaudfuwﬁ%ﬂ%ﬂmimwLLawawﬁLmuf’ﬁﬂwLﬁi”ﬂ@i”nnﬂi:mimuﬂ?rLﬁuaums

(a) To grant my/our proxy to consider and vote on my/our behalf as appropnate in all respects.
a () Inwiuua‘uaun £DNLFIIRIATULUBANANNLTzFIFVaIT W s

(b) To grant my/our proxy to vote at my/our desire as follows:

O ude O Lifudae O sasaniiss
Approve Disapprove Abstain
a 5 A ° ' o
TLUYUINEN 4 AINTUINRUAANADUUNKBNIINNIT U211 2553
Agenda 4 To approve the 2010 annual remuneration of the Company’s Directors

a (n)Iﬁﬁi"uwauﬁfunwﬁaﬁﬁﬁmmma”awameﬁwwLﬁTﬂ"L@Tnnﬂsznﬁn’mﬁLﬁuaums

(a) To grant my/our proxy to consider and vote on my/our behalf as approprlate in all respects.
D (V) SLV\NT]JSJB‘LI%%ﬂ aamammn LL%%W’INF}’NNﬂi“’ﬁx‘iﬂ‘ﬂﬂd"]ﬂWLﬁ]”l @IG‘LL

(b) To grant my/our proxy to vote at my/our desire as follows:

O iude O laiiiuee O sneanifns
Approve Disapprove Abstain
a 4 a - o ' ) o o
ELUEUNIEN 5 wmstmu,mmLmzn’m%ﬂmﬁamm%gaau‘umfn’ isza1i1l 2553
Agenda 5 To approve the 2010 annual appointment of auditors and determination of their Remuneration

a m ’lﬁﬁ%‘uuauﬁfuwﬁawﬁﬁmsmLLavawameﬁwwL%"ﬂvl,ér"nﬂﬂs”mﬁmuﬁLﬁuaums
(a)To grant my/our proxy to consider and vote on my/our behalf as appropnate in all respects.
() Iﬂwsuua‘uau"n LOONLFIIMIATLUUMNANNLITFIFVaIT W a9Tt
(b) To grant my/our proxy to vote at my/our desire as follows:

O wude O LiAude O saseniiss
Approve Disapprove Abstain
= = a a & ' P o
FLUYUINIEN 6 ATWILRANAINITANIT NN UNBNITHNITNATUMTE U521l 2553
Agenda 6 To approve the 2010 annual election of new directors in replacement of directors retiring by rotation

am Elﬁﬁ%’wamfuwﬁﬁw%ﬂmsmﬂLLmamﬁLmuiﬁwL%"ﬂ"l,n”nnﬂswmimuﬁLﬁufmms
(a) To grant my/our proxy to consider and vote on my/our behalf as appropnate in all respects.
() lmwiuuauauﬂ £DANIFLIRIATLUBANNANVLUITRIAVBITIWGN G9%h
(b) To grant my/our proxy to vote at my/our desire as follows:

v v
D Lgaﬂ(ﬂ\‘lﬂii&lﬂ'ﬁ‘ﬂ\‘l‘ﬁqﬂ
Vote for all the nominated candidates
3 v TS v a
QO e O lLiviuese U sasanidius
Approve Disapprove Abstain

2.



Q Henasnssamsiluszayaaa
Vote for an individual nominated candidate

qﬂmﬁ"lﬁ%’unmaua%a 1. wiwaddnd audisIed

Name of the nominated candidate 1. Mr. Apisak Tantivorawong

O iude O laiudae U saeanidus

Approve . Disapprove Abstain

yanafildsunaiauate 2. wielnsgni Aagn

Name of the nominated candidate 2. Mr. Krairit Nilkuha

O wiude O laiudae O saeanius
Approve . Disapprove Abstain

yaaaf lasunaiauata 3. wiEnIuns Wiy

Name of the nominated candidate 3. Mr. Tewin Wongwanich

O wiude O liiude O saeanidus
Approve . Disapprove Abstain

qﬂmﬁ"lﬁ%’unmaua%a 4. WaeN3239LaN a@aﬁ uFIRIUN

Name of the nominated candidate 4. Pol.Gen. Adul Sangsingkaew

O wiude O liiude O saeanidus
Approve . Disapprove Abstain

yanafildsunaiauate 5. WILNTNAY DAINIIAT

Name of the nominated candidate 5. Mr. Goanpot Asvinvichit

O wiude O liiude O saeanidus
Approve Disapprove Abstain

sufounsi 7 098w 9 (814)
Agenda 7 Other business (if any)

a (ﬂ)Wtﬁ"%’uuauﬁuwﬁ%w%ﬁmsmma”muameﬁwwL?lﬁ"L@TwﬂﬂszmimaJﬁLﬁuaums
(a) To grant my/our proxy to consider and vote on my/our behalf as approprlate in all respects.
(| () IMNSUNB‘LIQMYI L0ANLFIIRIATLUUMNANNLITFIFVRIT W a9Tt
(b) To grant my/our proxy to vote at my/our desire as follows:
3 v TS v a
O viude O liude O sananidns
Approve Disapprove Abstain

(5) mindazunmissasiiuavdunzlwnazlaldduwlyamaiszylluniifenavdunsfiliiatnmaasazuuwdsanuligndauaz lilndu
miasazuumFssvastmd luguedtodu
Voting of proxy in any agenda that is not as specified in this proxy shall be considered as invalid and not signify my voting as a shareholder.

(6) EluﬂsmwmwLmvlu"lmwumwmﬂ?aa@ﬂumsaamamaaﬂ wwulunszlaly wioszy lilidaian maslunimﬂﬂﬂswwumswmsmmsaaamlu
Liaﬂmuaﬂmuammiam?uvhmmu Smmnsmwum‘nnﬂmLiJaﬂuLLﬂaamamemmjama’qﬁaﬂ?mﬂ@ Imwsuuauau"n LHENTNN TGS
a\mmmemwL’anvlﬂﬂﬂﬂ‘i‘”m'm’mﬂmuaums
In case l/we have not specified my/our voting intention in any agenda or not clearly specified or in case the Meeting considers or passes
any resolutions other than those specified above, including the case of any amendment or addition of any fact, the proxy shall have the
rights to consider and vote on my/our behalf as he/she may deem appropriate in all respects.

Aamslangiunavaunslanszilulumsszgn sfoutioddhwiad ldnaziiamnyszns
Any actions performed by the proxy in this Meeting shall be deemed to be the actions performed by myself/ourselves.

AIWIN/Signed Huaudunz/Grantor
( )

AIUN/Signed H3UnDUAWNL/Proxy
( )

AIUN/Signed KIUnoUAWNL/Proxy
( )

A9U/Signed H3uaaUdwNE/Proxy



NAELAG : ma«Ui:mﬁnmﬁ'ﬁumqiﬁmmiﬁﬁ 1394 MYARALUUYRIRaNBURWNE (RVUN 5) W.A. 2550
Remarks: According to the notification of Department of Business Development, Ministry of Commerce regarding Proxy Form (Issue 5) 2007

1, Qﬁaﬁuﬁuavﬁfum azdasmondunz i Tunavdunaiomadondudid ey uazoanidssnzuun WimansoudausnirwuiulilTusenduns
nmﬂnuLﬁatmnmsadﬂ:tmutﬁﬂﬂﬁ
A shareholder shall appoint only one proxy to attend and vote at the Meeting. A shareholder shall not appoint more than one proxy each with
the voting rights in respect of a certain portion of shares.

2. mszLaan@’?&nﬁwmimmmLﬁaﬂﬁ"‘aniiumsﬁg@nﬁaLﬁaﬂﬁ"‘anssumnﬂmmqnna
Regarding the election of directors, the proxy can either elect the whole set of the nominated directors or by individual.

3. Elun‘mi*?rlﬁmszﬁﬁ]:ﬂmsmﬂmﬁﬂs@umnn:inﬁ:‘*?rs:yvlﬁnﬁu HuaudunzananInzy wuduldluludssindamauiususivas
WiTReNaLaWNE uUL v ALl

In case there are additional agenda, the proxy can state other agenda by using the Supplemental Proxy Form B as attached.

Tudszindanuunibidasauanwng WUy 2 / Supplemental Proxy Form B

mawavaunzlugruadudiaiuasnien Tnaaaud s1na (WKRI1BW) (“USEN”)
The proxy as a shareholder of Thai Oil Public Company Limited (“The Company”)

slumiﬂ‘sdmmumNnim‘mlim'lﬂ 2553 USHn Inwaawd 311a (&mnm) ‘l%‘mﬂns‘n 2 L 3B1U% 2553 LIA1 14.00 . ‘via\nm’m uaaza
Tidm&lfsﬁ‘ﬂma mmw'l‘s'l wNIHE NYILNNY (m‘umsa a’lﬂWi’n) 1l 1695 nuwwvmfﬂﬁu L’ummﬁmi n3ILNNY 10900 wiafay Wamauvl,ﬂ
Td 19 uazanuisude

At the meeting of the 2010 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders (AGM) of Thai Oil Public Company Limited on Friday, April 2, 2010,
14.00 hours at Vibhavadee Ballroom, Sofitel Centara Grand Bangkok Hotel, 1695 Phaholyothin Road, Chatuchak, Bangkok 10900 or such
other date, time and place as the meeting may be adjourned.

a = a
EEASTE T e b AT 1309
Agenda Subject :

Q () WisuuevsunslianiAasanuazasdunudmdldnndsemsamaniuaunas
(a) To grant my/our proxy to consider and vote on my/our behalf as appropriate in all respects.
a @ W;ﬁuuaudfumaanLﬁmaanumumummﬂszmﬁmaa*ﬁwwu{h @9fh
(b) To grant my/our proxy to vote at my/our desire as follows:
=3 v & v a
O Wiude O lidiuee O seeanides

Approve Disapprove Abstain

a | 4
FLLUIUITEN 1399
Agenda Subject :

Q Wﬁ%’uuauﬁuwﬁ%w%ﬁmsmwLtava\mﬁLmuiﬁwLﬁ?ﬁvlﬁﬂnﬂs:mimuﬁLﬁuawms

(a) To grant my/our proxy to consider and vote on my/our behalf as apgroprlate in all respects.
D () Inwiuwauaun LRaNFIIRIATLUBMNANNLTzRIAaIT NN aaft

(b) To grant my/our proxy to vote at my/our desire as follows:

O iuene O liduds U sasanidss
Approve Disapprove Abstain

=1 = o
FITLUHUINIEN 1383
Agenda Subject :

I ‘Lﬁs&"%’uwaudfuwﬁan%ﬁmsmLtawmuaLmuﬁhwLéTw"L@Tnnﬂs:msmuﬁLﬁuaums

(a) To grant my/our proxy to consider and vote on my/our behalf as apgropnate in all respects.
El () Elv\mmla'ua,un £2ONLREIAIATULUUAINAMNL Tz RIAUDITININ a9k

(b) To grant my/our proxy to vote at my/our desire as follows:

O fude O Liiudae U saeanidas
Approve Disapprove Abstain



I dl
ILUFUNIEN

Agenda

d L?zanﬁmisumsﬁ'&"g@

Vote for all the nominated directors
O whuee

Approve

d Lﬁaﬂﬁansmmﬂﬂquﬂm

= - < Vo
L339 Laaﬂm\iﬂiiuﬂ'\{lﬂ&l (ma)

Subject : Election of new Directors (continued)

O Liiudae

Disapprove

Vote for an individual nominated candidate

a9 va o
qﬂﬂaﬂvlmumsmuaﬂna
Name of the nominated candidate
O iude
Approve
AV s A
HﬂﬂaﬂvLGIiUﬂ’]SLﬁua’ﬂa
Name of the nominated candidate
O iude
Approve
AV s A
HﬂﬂaﬂvLGIiUﬂ’]SLﬁua’ﬂa
Name of the nominated candidate
O iude
Approve
AV s A
qﬂﬂaﬂ"lmumnaua’ﬁa ____________
Name of the nominated candidate
O iude
Approve

O liuedae
Disapprove

O liuedae
Disapprove

O liuedae
Disapprove

O ldiuedae
Disapprove

U sasaniins
Abstain

O sasanidus
Abstain

O sasaniius
Abstain

O sasaniius
Abstain

O seeanides
Abstain

TN VTUTEIN swanwsluluﬂszﬁweia%ﬂfaﬁaum.ldfumgﬂ@Taau‘%gitﬁua:Lﬂummﬁmnﬂi:ms
I/We certify that the statements in this Supplemental Proxy Form are correct, complete and true in all respects.

83U14/Signed

gwauﬁuﬂ:/Grantor

83U14/Signed

K3UnoUAWNL/Proxy

83U14/Signed

83U14/Signed

K3UnoUAWNL/Proxy

K3UnoUAWNL/Proxy




Proxy (Form C) (For foreign shareholders who have custodians in Thailand Only)

) ey U
LAUNLIU BN DK
Shareholders’ Registration No.

(N TN

H9Ndoa1A28 4 / Attachment 4

ansuaaNt 20 un
Duty Stamp 20 B

RIIFaNDURWNE (LU A) (mmmna%umaﬂswmﬂwLmeﬂaIm ﬁuluﬂSWLwﬂvlmemuu)

Bauh

Written at

N han W.4.
Date Month Year

1/We
ﬁwﬁnmué’aa%imﬂuﬁ

Office Address
DU

Road
JIRIA

Province

AUR/ULB gLna/ua
Tambol/Khwaeng Amphur/Khet
s lUTead

Postal Code

a @ s %
Tugmeisznavssiatlwasudnuazauai (Custodian) Ty (F8avin)
LSl u 9 u u 9 u 9

As a custodian for (Shareholder name)

P Y S A o € o @ A o
Fadudiieduves uisn Insaasd $ria (awzw) (‘USEn”)

being a shareholder of Thai Oil Public Company Limited (“the Company”)

= o &
LREN AW

votes as follows:
CEN

I@mﬁaﬁuﬁ‘i’lmuﬁﬁm’m Wi uazaandusadazuunlaivinnu
holding the total amount of shares and have the rights to vote equal to
L duandiny Wi aanFoIaIAzLwL lALYiND

ordinary share shares and have the rights to vote equal to
L wiSuans Wi AONLRBIRIASULUW IALYINAL

votes
a
LRE

shares and have the rights to vote equal to

preferred share

votes

s v ] £ a a o @ o a a
@)  venaudwnzly (MwaansanauawnglRnsINNIBETTIRIUTENY Lﬂumtmmiﬁﬂszqm mmwam‘im‘luwmﬁawjtyﬂs:‘zgm

MuAsfidgos1nae 11)

Hereby appoint (You may grant proxy to the Company’s Independent Directors as listed in Attachment 11 to attend the meeting)

Q1 4

Mr./Mrs./Miss
[30%Y%)

Road
RN

Province

Q2 4

Mr./Mrs./Miss
[30%Y%)

Road
RN

Province

Qs 4

Mr./Mrs./Miss
[30%Y%)

Road
RN

Province

1) b agﬁmmm‘ﬁ'
Age years, residing at
FAIUR/MY dna/ia
Tambol/Khwaeng Amphur/Khet
s ldswdld VED)
Postal Code or
1) f| agﬁmmm‘ﬁ'
Age years, residing at
AIUR/MY dna/ia
Tambol/Khwaeng Amphur/Khet
s ldswdld VED)
Postal Code or
1) f| agﬁmmm‘ﬁ'
Age years, residing at
AIUR/MY gLna/ia
Tambol/Khwaeng Amphur/Khet
s ldswdld
Postal Code

ﬂ%‘lﬂ%dﬂ%iﬂl‘ﬂﬂ\‘iNLG’IEI’]L‘]J%NLL‘YI%?.IEI\H.I’]WL%'] LWE]L‘?.I']T)Nﬂ‘S““’ﬁ&JLLa aamﬁﬂaam%m%‘lum‘sﬂswumumNna‘n%ﬂiwmﬂ 2553
Ui‘ls}‘ﬂ 1"(]?]?.162]6 Q']ﬂﬂ (N‘Iﬂ']%%) I%Q%ﬁﬂ‘i‘ﬂ 2 LB 2553 1A 14.00 w. waa"am'm uaaim IS\‘]I»L?NT‘IFNWIR L“If%‘n']i"l Ll.ﬂ‘i%\'r’l
ﬂi\‘iL“ﬂ‘W‘J (L‘ﬁ%‘ﬂia a’m‘mn) me 1695 ﬂ%%W‘WaTﬂﬁ% Lil(il%@l%ﬂ‘i ﬂi\‘ll,‘nw*i 10900 ﬂia‘nmwamau‘lﬂwm a1 Llawﬂﬂ’]%ﬂa%ﬂ?H

Anyone of above as my/our proxy to attend and vote on my/our behalf at the meeting of the 2010 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders (AGM) of Thai Oil Public Company Limited on Friday, April 2, 2010, 14.00 hours at Vibhavadee Ballroom, Sofitel
Centara Grand Bangkok Hotel, 1695 Phaholyothin Road, Chatuchak, Bangkok 10900 or such other date, time and place as the

meeting may be adjourned.



(4)

ﬁwwLﬁwanaudfum‘lﬁﬁ%'umaué‘.fum‘lumirﬁﬁwﬂsz’ﬁuLLazaamﬁmaanumﬂun%i Grait
I/we have granted to my/our proxy to attend this I\/Ieetlng and vote therein will be as follows:
VALAUNE Lmnummu%umﬁu‘nmLmnau,a HanTeanidusasnzunuldauda (1)
Grant proxy equal to aII of the number of shares held by me/us and has the right to vote in accordance with Clause (1)

VaUAUNE U9EI Aa Huanaiy Wu waziifnTaaniFosnsazuunle AN
Grant Partial of ordinary share shares and have the right to vote votes
WuLINENT Wu uazlidnTeanifosasnzuunle CHN
preferred share shares and have the right to vote votes
JANBaanFLININZUWTIALA GHN
Totaling votes

>
<

°1T'1‘wLﬁ?wauauﬁumslﬁ;ﬁwauﬁfumaanL%mmnummmwﬁwwL%ﬂlun’riﬂi:"gunsaﬁ 99
In this Meeting, I/we grant my/our proxy to vote on my/our behalf as follows:

sudaunsen 1 fiosaniusasneswnslszgaaaanan Uszdnil 2552 aini 3 wwnan 2552
Agenda 1 To certify the minutes of the 2009 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders held on April 3, 2009

d n)Wrﬁuuaudfuwvﬁ'ﬁﬂ%ﬁmirmLmvmuﬁmuf’ﬁﬂwLﬁi”ﬂ"Ln”nnﬂs:nﬁnm“?rLﬁuaumi
(a) To grant my/our proxy to consider and vote on my/our behalf as approprlate in all respects.
() Iﬁm‘uuauau‘n £DANLFBIAIAZLUBANANUL Tz RIFVRITIWEN s
(b) To grant my/our proxy to vote at my/our desire as follows:

I [ (0o T wos L laAun . oo (L 9aeomiFod. CER
ApPProve.......ccoeeevneenn. Vote Disapprove........ccccceeeunee.. Vote Abstain........cccoceeeeiiiiienns Vote
sudauasen 2 R13WITUIDINANIIANABIRVDIVIENY U3231T) 2552 uazfiansaandfsugauazindiilszann

™ Wi 31 5KINAN 2552

Agenda 2 To certify the Company’s 2009 operating results and to approve the audited financial statements for the year

ended December 31, 2009

(| (n)Iﬁﬁi"uuaudfun”ﬁ%ﬂ%ﬂaﬁimwLLawawﬁLmuf’ﬁﬂwLﬁi”ﬂ"Ln”nmJi”mimu“?rLﬁuaums

(a) To grant my/our proxy to consider and vote on my/our behalf as approprlate in all respects.
a () Iﬁm‘uua‘uauﬂ £DNLFIIRIATULUBANANNLTzFIFVaIT W s

(b) To grant my/our proxy to vote at my/our desire as follows:

O i ViE O A ae e, VRE U 5000ntd89. e, ViE
ApProve........ccceeeneenn. Vote Disapprove.........ccccveeunee.. Vote Abstain........cccceveeviiieiinn Vote
sudeuasen 3 fHosaneundanisnadniiwiadmiunalsznaunisil 2552
Agenda 3 To approve the dividend payment for the Company’s 2009 operating results

(| (n)Iﬁﬁi"uwauﬁfunwﬁaﬂ%ﬂmimma”awameﬁﬂwLﬁTﬂ"L@Tnnﬂi“min’mﬁLﬁuaums

(a) To grant my/our proxy to consider and vote on my/our behalf as approprlate in all respects.
D (V) SLV\NT]JSJB‘].I%WV] aamammn LL%%W’INF}’NNﬂi“’ﬁx‘iﬂ‘ﬂad"ﬂ"IWLﬁ]”l @IG‘LL

(b) To grant my/our proxy to vote at my/our desire as follows:

O AU, woe O ladiuedhe
Disapprove....
szdausen 4 NITHINMARBAATIADUUNWHNTINNNT U52911) 2553
Agenda 4 To approve the 2009 annual remuneration of the Company’s Directors

(| (n)Iﬁﬁi"uuaudfun”ﬁ%ﬂ%ﬂaﬁimwLLawawﬁLmuf’ﬁﬂwLﬁi”ﬂ"Ln”nmJi:nﬁnm“?rLﬁuaums
(a) To grant my/our proxy to consider and vote on my/our behalf as approprlate in all respects.
() Iﬁm‘uua‘uauﬂ £DNLFIIRIATULUBANANNLTzFIFVaIT W A
(b) To grant my/our proxy to vote at my/our desire as follows:

(I T oY 1T B [ VIR TEC o TR woe A 9eeant®ee e, GiN
ApPProve........ccceeeuneenn. Vote Disapprove.........ccccveeunee.. Vote Abstain........cccceveeviiieeins Vote
suflauased 5 ﬁmsm'nwiar??au,a:f‘iwun@hmammué‘aauﬁ'@i 1l92911) 2553
Agenda 5 To approve the 2010 annual appointment of auditors and determination of their Remuneration

dm 1ﬁﬁ§u;uaudfuwﬁ'ﬁn%ﬁmimmavmuameﬁwwn‘mﬁﬂnﬂsvminmﬁLﬁuaums
(a) To grant my/our proxy to consider and vote on my/our behalf as approprlate in all respects.
(| () lﬂwiuuauauﬂ LaaNLFEIRIATLURANANNLTERIAVITINGN Gadl
(b) To grant my/our proxy to vote at my/our desire as follows:
O Aude... adme A lidudae. AFee A seeaniFes..
Approve Vote Disapprove.........ccccccu..... Vote Abstain........ccccoeveeiiiieens Vote

2.



suflsuniei 6 fnsmdenasnssamsinsiununssamsiiasunse Uszeni 2563
Agenda 6 To approve the 2010 annual election of new directors in replacement of directors retiring by rotation
(| (ﬂ)Iﬁﬁi"uwauﬁfuﬂwﬁaﬂ%ﬂmimma”awameﬁﬂwLﬁTﬂ"L@Tﬂﬂﬂi“mm’mﬁLﬁuaums
(a) To grant my/our proxy to consider and vote on my/our behalf as approprlate in all respects.
D (V) sLV\NT]JSJa‘].l%‘l«lfl’l aamammﬂ LL%%@W’]NW’NNﬂiwﬁdﬂ‘ﬂad"lﬂv‘lﬁ]”l @l«i%
(b) To grant my/our proxy to vote at my/our desire as follows:

a LHANAINITINNINGGA
Vote for all the nominated candidates
O Anude ViE (I PR Y T VRE U 5000ntd89. e, VFE
ApProve......ccccevveeenen. Vote Disapprove........cccceceuue... Vote Abstain.........ccooeeiiiiieens Vote

P & &,
a Laanmnﬁumitﬂ%iwqﬂﬂa
Vote for an individual nominated candidate

AV e A av &£ o a 4
yﬂﬂaﬂvlmun’maua"ﬁa 1. WIYDAANA AWFAIITIIA
Name of the nominated candidate 1. Mr. Apisak Tantivorawong
O AU, o A, o L 9aeeni®@nd VABS
ApProve.......cccceeenenees Vote Disapprove.........ccccceeuee. Vote Abstain.......cococeiiiiiiis Vote
i 2o i £ a
yﬂﬂﬂﬁ"lmumimua%a 2. %’lﬂlﬂiq"nﬁ #aan
Name of the nominated candidate 2. Mr. Krairit Nilkuha
3 v a TS v a a a
(I T Y wee L AU s G0N L 9000nEE e, Ve
ApPProve......cccccceeeeenen. Vote Disapprove..........ccceeeueee.. Vote Abstain.........cccceeviiieennenn. Vote
yaaaf lasunaiauata 3. wiEnIuns iy
Name of the nominated candidate 3. Mr. Tewin Wongwanich
3 v a TS v a a a
(I T T Y (RN I [ PR TY T Ve O 9000nE e, Ve
ApProve......ccccvvveennen. Vote Disapprove........c.cccceeue... Vote Abstain.........ccooeeviiieens Vote
yanafildsuniaauate 4. WaR13200N a9ad UEIRINAD
Name of the nominated candidate 4. Pol.Gen. Adul Sangsingkaew
O AU, o A, o L 9aeeni®@nd VABS
AppProve.......ccccceeeevnnen. Vote Disapprove.........cccceevueee. Vote Abstain.......cccoooviiiienns Vote
yanafildsuniaiauate 5. WILNINIY SAINIIAY
Name of the nominated candidate 5. Mr. Goanpot Asvinvichit
(I T Y wee A laiudne.... AR U saeaniius
ApProve........ccocoeeeeeene Vote Disapprove..........cccocueenee. Vote Abstain.........ccccoeeeerieenen.
a P | ©
LUPUNIEN 7 13298% 9 (0N)
Agenda 7 To consider and approve the issuance of debentures

(| (ﬂ)Iﬁﬁi"uuaudfuw”ﬁ%ﬂ%ﬂaﬁimwLLawawﬁLmuf’ﬁﬂwLﬁi”ﬂ"L@i”mei:ﬂﬁmuﬁLﬁuaums
(a) To grant my/our proxy to consider and vote on my/our behalf as approprlate in all respects.
() Iﬁm‘uua‘uauﬂ £DNLFIIRIATULUBANANNLTzFIFVaIT W A
(b) To grant my/our proxy to vote at my/our desire as follows:

O e, - (TE R B [ PR LYY T Gos L seeani®ede ViE
ApProve.......ccccceeeueen. Vote Disapprove.........cccceeevuen Vote Abstain.......ccccoeiiiiinns Vote

5) miasazunmisvasiuuavaunzlunzlanliduwllanneylilunihfovsvdunzalvioiinssazunudnsnuligndeuazlilnidu
misazuumdssvasthwdlugiusdionu
Voting of proxy in any agenda that is not as specified in this proxy shall be considered as invalid and not signify my voting as a shareholder.

(6) ’luﬂﬁmwmwm"[u"lmwumwuﬂiwm@ﬂumﬁaamamaaﬂ wwulwnszlald vieszylilidaiau ma’lunimﬂﬂﬂiwmmmiwmsmmaaam‘lu
LiaﬂﬂuanmuaamLiamswu"hmmu swfansdinsutlundswamiafaaudaifianieszmsle lwwiuuaumﬂ «AantRNTIMUAE
aaammemwm"l,@mnﬂswmimuﬂmuaums
In case l/we have not specified my/our voting intention in any agenda or not clearly specified or in case the Meeting considers or passes

any resolutions other than those specified above, including the case of any amendment or addition of any fact, the proxy shall have the
rights to consider and vote on my/our behalf as he/she may deem appropriate in all respects.



AIUN/Signed H{uaudunz/Grantor

AIUN/Signed K3UnoUAwNE/Proxy
( )

AIU/Signed H3unauaunz/Proxy
( )

AIU/Signed H3unauaunz/Proxy

RUYLUA : AN TENIANINRRIBITININITAT 1509 NMRBARLULNII Rasauswne (RUUN 5) W.A. 2550

Remarks: According to the notification of Department of Business Development, Ministry of Commerce regarding Proxy Form (Issue 5) 2007

1. WNFOUOLAUNZULL A. f:sl,ﬁam:nigﬁﬁpjﬁa :uﬁﬂﬂﬂg%alumlﬁUul,ﬂugmnmmﬂi:mﬂ wazussnsnalaLdiaw (Custodian)
Tutszinelnodudehnuazquaiuiriinu
Only foreign shareholders as registered in the registration book who have custodian in Thailand can use the Proxy Form C
2. nanpufidasuuuniouiunisdonaudun: uuu o fa
Evidences to be enclosed with the proxy form C are:
(1) wiiRanaudrwanndfaiuliaalaidion (Custodian) luddnfiunsasnuluniifonaudunzunu
Power of Attorney from shareholder authorizes a custodian to sign the Proxy form on behalf of the shareholder.
(2) wisRadudwiaswuluniifonaudunzunuldiueunnadsznauginia dslawdou (Custodian)
Letter of certification to certify that the signer in the proxy Form have a permission to act as a Custodian.
3. Nna%u'ﬂuauau‘ﬂ OH maauauauw%muuauauw LWEJGSW&IL@U?M%NL‘U’HJS"H&ILL& AONLTLIAINLUL vLSJEﬂ&I’]‘mLLUGLL?Jﬂ%’]u’luMuEl%
Niuuauauw ﬁa’]i]ﬂuLwaLLEJﬂﬂ”liadﬂ LL%%L@UGVLGI
A shareholder shall appoint only one holder to attend and vote at the Meeting. A shareholder may not appoint more than one proxy
holder, each with the voting right in respect of a certain portion of shares.
4. ’J’]i:lﬁaﬂa’:ﬂﬂii&lﬂﬁia’mﬂiﬂLgaﬂ(;?\‘]ﬂii&lﬂ’ﬁﬁtdﬁﬂﬁ'%aLﬁaﬂ@i‘]ﬂii&lﬂﬁﬂﬂui’mUﬂﬂa
Regarding the election of directors, the proxy can either elect the whole set of the directors or only a specific director.
5. lunimwmﬁ”mwwmsmﬂuﬂﬁﬂ?ﬁumﬂmn’ﬁ“mwu%mmu Nmu%u‘n”mmm?uLW11L@]ﬂ(ﬂﬂuﬂiﬂﬁmmmmumuma‘uaa
vxmaauamu‘n” LY @ m.mu
In case there are additional agenda, the proxy can state other agenda by using the Supplemental Proxy Form C as attached.

‘luﬂswm@lauuuwmﬁauaunum Uy @
(ﬁ?%i‘u&ma%uﬁwﬂiwmﬂﬂLL@]G@G@‘I&I@]L@U%IWJS”WI?[VLY}EJL‘Y]’]%%)
Supplemental Proxy Form C
(For foreign shareholders who have custodians in Thailand Only)

miuauﬁum‘lugmuﬂugﬁaﬁwuam’%i?m Tnaasud s1ne (WK1TH) (“USEN”)
The proxy as a shareholder of Thai Oil Public Company Limited (“The Company”)

1%!’1’]51]5“?531&’134{]]Nnaﬁ%ﬂi“"ﬂ’]ﬂ 2553 Uiﬂ“fl 17]2]63%1& NA (N‘Vi’l?.i%) sl%’?luﬂﬂi‘i’l 2 1 NBEUW 2553 12a1 14.00 w. vaa\nm'm vaazy
Tsausu‘fsnﬂma L°1i%1’|’li’1 LLﬂi%ﬂ ﬂi\imWﬂ (m%ma a’lﬂ‘Wi’l'J) LauN 1695 ﬂ%%W%aTﬂﬁ% Lil@li]@l'i)ﬂi niamwa 10900 mam WGLGQ‘I«LVLTJ
1%’3% LIRT LhRE amuﬂaumu

At the meeting of the 2010 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders (AGM) of Thai Oil Public Company Limited on Friday, April 2,
2010, 14.00 hours at Vibhavadee Ballroom, Sofitel Centara Grand Bangkok Hotel, 1695 Phaholyothin Road, Chatuchak, Bangkok
10900 or such other date, time and place as the meeting may be adjourned.

a A A
CLUFUINIEN L339
Agenda Subject :

a Iﬁﬁ%'uuauﬁuw"ﬁ%ﬂ‘ﬁﬁmim’lLLa‘"aduamefhwLﬁT’l"léTﬂnﬂszﬂ’limwﬁLﬁuaumﬁ

(a) To grant my/our proxy to consider and vote on my/our behalf as apQroprlate in all respects.
D () Ivﬁm‘u&lau%uw zaanLRIRIATLBUMNANNLTEEIAUIT NI fadh

(b) To grant my/our proxy to vote at my/our desire as follows:

(I T O Y ViE (I P S Y Ve O 9000nF 8, Vie
ApProve......ccccccvveeennen. Vote Disapprove........cccceeene... Vote Abstain.........ccoceeviiieeennnen. Vote



a = 4
ILUFUNIEN 1329

Agenda Subject :

a (ﬂ)‘Lﬁg%'uuauiumﬁ%w%ﬁmsmmamwﬁmeﬁwwnﬁ"lﬁnﬂﬂszmmmﬁLﬁuaumi

(a) To grant my/our proxy to consider and vote on my/our behalf as appropriate in all respects.
O (@) Wiiuwevaunzesnifsiasnzuuuauanuiszasdvasiimid dail

(b) To grant my/our proxy to vote at my/our desire as follows:

O wude |9 (I VIR T \Je9 U 90009 \J9
AppProve.......ccccceeeenenen. Vote Disapprove........cccccceevueee. Vote Abstain........ccoceviienninnn. Vote
=1 P o o & "I
FITLUHUINIEN 1383 Laanmn‘smms‘lwu (a12)
Agenda Subject : Election of new Directors (continued)

a \RaNAINTTUMINILA
Vote for all the nominated directors

O e VFE9 O LA VFE9 U saeantFed. VFE9

ApPProve......ccccccuveeennnen. Vote Disapprove........cccceeeuee.. Vote Abstain........ccoceeviieeeennen. Vote
a Lﬁ@ﬂé’mimmilﬂmwyﬂﬂa

Vote for an individual nominated candidate

Y 2a A
yﬂﬂaﬂ‘lmun’maua“ﬁa
Name of the nominated candidate

O AU, 0N O lLiiude.... (I R Al (TR VEBS
AppProve.......cccceeeevenen. Vote Disapprove........c.cccceevueee. Abstain........cccceviienniinn. Vote

qﬂﬂnﬁ"lﬁ%’umsmua%a _________________________________

Name of the nominated candidate

O e ViE O AU @, ViE W 500antd89. . VFE
ApPProve.......ccccoeecueene Vote Abstain....

Y sa “
yﬂﬂaﬂvlmum‘naua“ﬁa
Name of the nominated candidate

O e ViEg O A VEE9 U s00ant@e9. . VFEg
ApPProve......cccccvveeannen. Vote Disapprove........ccccceeeeueee.. Vote Abstain.........ccoceeviieeennnen. Vote
AV v A
yaaafldsumaaue®a
Name of the nominated candidate
=3 2 a & U a a a
O e VFE9 O T AuG A VFE9 U saeantFed. VFE9
ApProve.......cccccvveeennen. Vote Disapprove........cccceeeuee.. Vote Abstain........ccoceeviieeeeennnen. Vote

TN VTUTRIN smﬂ'ﬁ‘luluﬂizﬁ‘h@ia%ﬁfa%auauﬁfumgnﬁaau‘%gi:ﬁuazLﬂuﬂ’nm‘%mﬂﬂizms
I/We certify that the statements in this Supplemental Proxy Form are correct, complete and true in all respects.

AIUN/Signed HuauduNz/Grantor
( )

AIUIN/Signed H3UNDUAWNE/Proxy
( )

AIUIN/Signed H3UNDUAWNE/Proxy
( )

AIUIN/Signed H3UNDUAWNE/Proxy
( )



Attachment 5

Procedures and Conditions for the Registration of Attendance of
the 2010 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders (AGM) and
the Appointment of Proxies of Thai Oil Public Company Limited

The policy of the Board of The Stock Exchange of Thailand, dated February 19, 1999,
regarding to good practices for arranging shareholders’ meetings, establishes guidelines to be
followed by listed companies to create confidence in shareholders, investors and all the
relevant parties. Accordingly, in order to create transparency and fairness and to benefit the
shareholders, Thai Oil Public Company Limited requires inspection of documents and other
evidences that express showing the identity of shareholders or their representative entitled to
attend the meeting. This shall be observed by all shareholders.

e Personal attendance at a meeting

For more convenience in registration, please present the Registration Form, with
barcode indicating shareholder’s registration number printed, (Attachment 3) at the
meeting.

The original of identification card or government official identification card or
passport (in case of foreigners) must be presented together with the Registration
Form. In case of any change in the name or the last name, the evidence related to
that change must be provided.

e Appointment of the proxy holder
For more convenience in registration, please present the Registration Form, with
barcode indicating shareholder’s registration number printed, (Attachment 3) at the
meeting.

- A shareholder is allowed to grant a proxy to only one representative to attend and
vote at the shareholders’ meeting by using the attached Proxy Form B (Attachment
4, which is separated from this invitation letter herewith); if other forms (Form A
or Form C (Only for shareholders who are foreign investors and have appointed
custodians in Thailand)) are needed, please download from Thaioil’s website
www.thaioil.co.th.

- A completed proxy includes main part and supplement proxy form with the
signature of grantor and proxy holder must be submitted to the Chairman of the
meeting or the authorized persons prior to the meeting. If there is any material
amendment or correction to the proxy form, a shareholder must countersign such
amendment or correction. The proxy form must be affixed with a duty stamp of
Baht 20.

- A proxy holder, particularly if the granted by a foreign shareholder, should arrive
promptly to register at the beginning of the registration period in order to allow
sufficient time for inspection of the proxy form and the supporting documents.
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Documents required to support the appointment of a proxy holder

(1) If_a shareholder is a natural person, the following documents are required to
register attendance:

e A certified copy of the identification card, or the government official
identification card, or the passport (in case of foreigners) of the
shareholder.

e When registering, a proxy holder must provide the original of his/her
identification card, or government official identification card or the original
passport (in case of foreigners).

(2) If a shareholder is a juristic person, the following procedures and documents are
required to be produced to register attendance:

e A proxy form must be signed by an authorized person whose name is
shown in the affidavit of that justice person, issued by the Ministry of
Commerce, or by the relevant government authority, and bear a date within
60 day period prior to the date of the shareholders’ meeting. The proxy
form should be sealed of the juristic person (if any).

e |f the shareholder is a juristic person registered under Thai law, a copy of
the Affidavit of that juristic person, issued by the Ministry of Commerce,
or by the relevant government authority, and bears a date within 60 day
period prior to the date of the shareholders’ meeting. The copy of the
Affidavit must be certified as a true copy by the authorized person of that
juristic person and bear the seal of the juristic person (if any).

e If the shareholder is a foreign juristic person, an Affidavit of that juristic
person, issued by the relevant government authority of the country where
the juristic person is located. The Affidavit is required to be certified by a
notary public or another authorised authority and bear a date within a 3
month period prior to the date of the shareholders’ meeting.

e If a document is in a language other than English, an English translation
certified as a true and correct translation by an authorised person of such
juristic person.

e When registering a proxy holder must provide the original his/her
identification card, or government official identification card or passport
(in case of foreigners).

If you wish to appoint a representative to attend and vote at the Meeting, please proceed
with either of these 2 methods:

1) Granting proxy to one of the Company’s independent directors as listed in
Attachment 11 — please fill up and sign the proxy form as attached herewith and send back to
the Company together with a copy of your identification card within March 26, 2010 for
registration in advance, or

2) Granting proxy to other person — please fill up and sign the proxy form which must
be presented by the representative at the meeting together with a copy of your identification
card and the original identification card of the proxy holder.

A shareholder or proxy holder may register and submit the required documents or any other
evidences for inspection at the meeting place prior to the meeting from 12.00 to 14.00 hours on
Friday, April 2, 2010.
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Attachment 6 (1)

(Supporting Document for Meeting Agenda 6

To consider the election of new Directors for the year 2010)

BIO DATA of the nominated candidate for the election of new Directors
For the year 2010 , Thai Oil Public Company Limited

Name — Last name : Mr. Apisak Tantivorawong

(Proposed for re-election)

Date of Birth : 28 August 1953

Age : 56 yrs.

Address ¢ 37-39 Dumrongruk Road, Klong Mahanak, Pomprab, Bangkok 10100
Current Position : Director and President, Krungthai Bank Public Company Limited

Position in Thaioil Board of Directors : Independent Director (non-executive) and

Member of the Corporate Governance Committee
Education :  B.Sc. in Chemical Engineering, Chulalongkorn University

MBA Industrial Management, University of Tennessee, USA
Training for the Directors courses of Thai Institute of Directors Association, Thailand (I0D)

: Certificate in Director Certification Program (DCP 18/2002))

Other Training : National Defense College, Joint State-Private Sector, Class 16, Thailand
Working Experience in the 5 preceding years :
2001 — 2004 : President, Siam City Bank Public Company Limited
2004 — Present : President, Krungthai Bank Public Company Limited

Present Directors and Executive Position

Listed Company Non-listed company C‘;‘:;ii‘::'ﬁivne '
Number ) N And other Organizations/ Institutions bi:llit:sdof
Cnr:;any Type of Directors Position the Company
) 1) Director and President, (3) entities shall be comprised as follows; None
Krungthai Bank Public Company Limited
1) Chairman, Thai Bankers’ Association
2) Independent Director, 2) Director, Thai Asset Management
Indorama Polymers Public Company Limited Corporation (TAMC)
3) Director, Board of Investment (BOI)
Appointment Date : April 10, 2007 (To be elected as a director in the 2007 AGM)
Term : 2 Years 11 Months (Term Completed at the 2010 AGM)
BOD Meeting Attendance in 2009 : 5/8
TOP Shareholding (%) : None
Conflict of Interest : None
Relation among family with the Company : None
Dispute : None
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BIO DATA of the nominated candidate for the election of new Directors
For the year 2010 , Thai Qil Public Company Limited

Name — Last name

Date of Birth

Age
Address

Current Position

Position in Thaioil Board of Directors :

Education

Attachment 6 (2)

(Supporting Document for Meeting Agenda 6

To consider the election of new Directors for the year 2010)

Mr. Krairit Nilkuha
(Proposed for re-election)

10 December 1951
58 yrs

Ministry of Energy 4" Floor Building 8, 17 Rama I Rd., Kasatsuk
Bridge Rongmueng, Patumwan, Bangkok 10330 Thailand

Director General Department of Alternative Energy Development and
Efficiency, Ministry of Energy

Independent Director (non-executive) and Member of the Audit Committee

B.Sc. in Mechanics Engineering, Kasetsart University

M.Sc. in Petroleum Engineering, New Mexico Institute of Mining and

Technology, USA

Training for the Directors courses of Thai Institute of Directors Association, Thailand (I0D)

Other Training

Certificate in Audit Committee Continuing and Development Program (ACP 24/2008)

Certificate in Capital Market Academy Leadership Program, Class 8, Thailand

Diploma, the National Defense Course, Class 48 (2005), National Defense College

Working Experience in the 5 preceding years :

2003 —2005
2005 —-2007
2005 -2008
2008 —2009

Deputy Director — General, Department of Mineral Fuels
Director, PTT Exploration and Production Public Company Limited
Director — General, Department of Mineral Fuels

Deputy Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Energy

Present Directors and Executive Position

Listed Company Non-listed company C‘;‘:;i::::'ﬁivne '
Number And other Organizations/ Institutions bR?lated "
of Type of Directors Position the"zzif;;’ny
Company
None None (1) entity shall be comprised as follows; None
1) Director General Department of Alternative Energy
Development and Efficiency, Ministry of Energy
Appointment Date April 10, 2007 (To be elected as a director in the 2007 AGM)
Term 2 Years 11 Months (Term Completed at the 2010 AGM)
BOD Meeting Attendance in 2009 6/8
TOP Shareholding (%) 0.0006
Conflict of Interest None
Relation among family with the Company : None
Dispute None
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BIO DATA of the nominated candidate for the election of new Directors
For the vear 2010, Thai Qil Public Company Limited

Attachment 6 (3)

(Supporting Document for Meeting Agenda 6

To consider the election of new Directors for the year 2010)

Name — Last name
Date of Birth

Age

Address

Current Position

Mr. Tevin Vongvanich

(Proposed for Director)

31 August, 1958

51 yrs

PTT Public Company Limited 23" Floor, PTT Office Building
555 Vibhavadi Rangsit Rd., Chatuchak, Bangkok 10900, Thailand
Chief Financial Officer, PTT Public Company Limited

Position in Thaioil Board of Directors : -

Education

Bachelor in Engineering (Chemical Engineering) - 1st Honors Chulalongkorn
University, Thailand

Masters of Science (Chemical Engineering) / Rice University, Texas, USA
Masters of Science (Petroleum Engineering) / University of Houston, Texas, USA

Training for the Directors courses of Thai Institute of Directors Association, Thailand (I0D)

Other Training

Certificate in Director Certification Program (DCP 21/2002)

Certificate in Financial Statements for Directors (FSD 6/2009)

Certificate in Senior Executive Program (S.E.P. 7), SASIN Institute

Certificate in Program for Global Leadership (PGL), Harvard Business School, USA
Democracy for Senior Executives Program (Class 10), King Prajadhipok’s Institute
Certificate in Capital Market Academy Leadership Program, Class 6, Thailand

Working Experience in the 5 preceding years:

2004 —2007
2008 — 2009
2009 - 2010

2010- Present

Executive Vice President, Corporate Business Development, PTT

Senior Executive Vice President, Corporate Strategy & Development, PTT
Chief Financial Officer and Acting Senior Executive Vice President,
Corporate Strategy & Development, PTT

Chief Financial Officer, PTT Public Co., Ltd.

Present Directors and Executive Position

Listed Company Position in
. Competitive/
Non-listed company Related
Number . . business
of Type of Directors Position And other Organizations/ Institutions corthe
Company ompany
(4) 1) Director, PTT Aromatics and (4) entities shall be comprised as fOHOWS; None
Rc?ﬁnlng Public Com'pany LlTnlted Non-listed Company (2)
2) Director, PTT Chemical Public 1) Chairman, PTT ICT Solutions Co., Ltd.
Company Limited 2) Director, PTT International Co., Ltd.

3) Director, PTT Exploration and
Production Public Company Limited. 1) Fellow Member,Thai Institute of Directors (I0D)

Other Organizations/ Institutions (2)

4) Bangkok Aviation Fuel Services 2) Chairman of the Board, Corporate Waters Ford
Public Company Limited. Diamond Tower
Appointment Date -
Term -

BOD Meeting Attendance in 2009 : -

TOP Shareholding (%) None
Conflict of Interest None
Relation among family with the Company : None
Dispute None
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Attachment 6 (4)

(Supporting Document for Meeting Agenda 6

To consider the election of new Directors for the year 2010)

BIO DATA of the nominated candidate for the election of new Director:
For the year 2010, Thai Qil Public Company Limited

Name — Last name : Pol.Gen.Adul Sangsingkeo

(Proposed for Director)
Date of Birth : April 8, 1954
Age : 56 yrs. | g 4
Address : Royal Thai Police, Building 1 Floor 5 ™ Rama 1 Rd., Patumwan, Bangkok 10330, Thailanc
Current Position : Advisor to Royal Thai Police (Security and Special Tasks)

Position in Thaioil Board of Directors : -
Education : B.A. Public Administration (Class 29), Royal Thai Police Cadet Academy
M.A. Social Science, Kasetsart University
Diploma National Defense College, Class 42, Royal Thai Armed Force
Training for the Directors courses of Thai Institute of Directors Association, Thailand (IOD) : None
Other Training : Certificate in Capital Market Academy Leadership Program, Class 5, Thailand
Joint Staff Course (Class 33), Joint Staff College, Royal Thai Armed Forces
Senior Crisis Management Seminar, Washington D.C., USA
Mass Transit Security Seminar, Washington D.C., USA
Antiterrorism Executive Forum, Washington D.C., USA

Working Experience in the 5 preceding years :

2005 : Commissioner of Provincial Police Region 9, Acting Commissioner of the Command and
Operation Center (Forward Post), Royal Thai Police

2006 : Assistant Commissioner General, Royal Thai Police Caretaker of Commissioner of Provincial
Police Region 9, Acting Commissioner of The Command and Operation Center (Forward Post),
Royal Thai Police

2007 ¢ Assistant Commissioner General, Acting Commissioner of the Command and Operation Center

(Forward Post), Royal Thai Police
2009 - Present : Advisor to Royal Thai Police (Security and Special Tasks)

Present Directors and Executive Position

Listed Company Position in
. Competitive/
Non-listed company Related
Number . . business
of Type of Directors Position And other Organizations/ Institutions of the
Company Company
None None (2) entities shall be comprised as follows; None
Other Organizations/ Institutions
1) Director, Executive Board of Directors Industrial
Estate Authority of Thailand
2) Board of The Market Organization Ministry of Interior
Appointment Date : -
Term : -

BOD Meeting Attendance in 2009 : -

TOP Shareholding (%) : None
Conflict of Interest : None
Relation among family with the Company : None
Dispute : None
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Attachment 6 (5)

(Supporting Document for Meeting Agenda 6

To consider the election of new Directors for the year 2010)

BIO DATA of the nominated candidate for the election of new
Directors
For the vear 2010, Thai Qil Public Company Limited

Name — Last name : Mr. Goanpot Asvinvichit

(Proposed for Director)

Date of Birth : 28 March, 1956

Age : 53 yrs.

Address : 16/1 Attakarnprasit Road, Tungmahamek Sub-district, Sathorn District, Bangkok
Current Position : Advisor, Board of Trade of Thailand

Position in Thaioil Board of Directors: -

Education :  B.A. in Economics, Thammasat University
M.A. in Business Administration, University of Southern California, USA
Diploma, the National Defense Course for the Joint State-Private Sector,
the National Defense College.
Training for the Directors courses of Thai Institute of Directors Association, Thailand (I0D)
Certificate in Director Accreditation Program (DAP72/2008)
Other Training ¢ Certificate in Capital Market Academy Leadership Program, Class 5, Thailand

Certificate in Democratic Politics and Governance, King Prajadhipok’s Institute, Thailand

Working Experience in the 5 preceding years:

1999 - 2001 :  Deputy Minister of Commerce

2002 : Advisor, Minister of Finance

2002 - 2003 : Thai Trade Representative and Special Envoy of the prime Minister
2004 - 2007 : Chief Executive Officer, Government Savings Bank

2007 - 2008 : Director, IRPC Public Company Limited

Present Directors and Executive Position

Listed Company Position in
. Competitive/
Non-listed company Related
Number | Type of Directors o o business
of Position And other Organizations/ Institutions ot the
Company Company
None None (3) entities shall be comprised as follows; None

Other Organizations/ Institutions
1) Chairman, MFC Fund

2) Advisory Board, MFC Public Company Limited
3) Advisor to the Financial and Economic Base, United Nations

Appointment Date : -
Term : -
BOD Meeting Attendance in 2009 : -

TOP Shareholding (%) : None
Conflict of Interest : None
Relation among family with the Company : None
Dispute : None
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Attachment 7

Definition of Independent Director of the Company

Component and gualifications of Directors

The Board of Directors must comprise of sufficient nhumber of independent directors to inspect and
balance the performance of the Board and the operation of Management team. Independent directors on the Board
must represent at least one-third of all directors and must not be less than three directors. The number of Thaioil’s
independent directors meets and exceeds the criteria required by laws. Presently, the Board of Directors is
comprised of 15 directors, including one executive director and 14 non-executive directors.

Independent Directors Qualification

Independent directors are directors independent of major shareholders or group of majority shareholders
and management with adequate authority to assess financial and business information as well as other business so as
to express opinions freely in performing the assigned task of protecting the interests of minority shareholders. The
independent directors are responsible for preparing their independence report when appointed and disclose the
information in the Company’s annual report.

Independent directors must have all the qualifications required by The Stock Exchange of Thailand and
the Securities and Exchange Commission which are:

1) Must not hold more than 1% of the total voting rights in the Company, the Company’s subsidiary or
affiliated companies.

2) Must not be an executive director, contractor, employee, or advisor who receive a salary, or a person
with controlling power of the Company, its subsidiaries, or affiliated companies in the past two years.

3) Must not be a person who has blood ties or by the registered under the law to directors, executives,
major shareholders, or a person who have the power to control the Company, its subsidiaries, or affiliated
companies.

4) Must not be a person who has business relationships with the company during the past 2 years, both
in the fields of professional services, such as the auditor or a provider of professional services with a fee exceeding 2
million baht in commercial and business, e.g. no significant transactions with the company.

5) Must not be a representative of directors, shareholders, or a person associated with the major
shareholders.

6) Must not possess qualification or other manners that prevent the ability to provide independent
opinion.

7) Must be able to participate in decision-making operation in the form of a quorum.

8) Must not operate the same business and in competition with the Company, its subsidiaries, or
affiliated companies; shall not hold more than 1% shares; or being a director who is involved in administration,
contractor, or employee who receives a salary or a person with power to control the business.

The Company has a policy to have independent directors meet at least twice a year to provide opportunity for the
discussion or to propose guidelines in improving the quality of Thaioil’s corporate governance practice.
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Attachment 8
Supporting Document for Meeting Agenda 6

To approve the 2010 annual election of new directors in
replacement of directors retiring by rotation

Directors Nomination

Regarding the selection of qualified candidates for nomination as directors
in replacement of those who are retired by rotation, the Company gives the opportunity
to our shareholders to nominate candidates with qualifications required by Securities
and Exchange laws and by the Company’s regulations to be elected as directors.
Announcement has been posted on the Company’s website to invite nomination from
shareholders. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee will then select qualified
candidates and propose to the Board of Directors for consideration. After the Board’s
agreement, the list of such candidates will be proposed to the Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders to approve the election by majority votes. The Nomination and
Remuneration Committee also select qualified directors to be members of committees

in replacement of the vacancy after the AGM and propose to the Board for approval.
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Attachment 9

The Company’s Articles of Association concerning the shareholder’s meeting

1. Calling of the Shareholders Meeting

Article 33. The board of directors shall call for a shareholders’ meeting which is an
annual ordinary general meeting of shareholders within four (4) months from
the last day of the fiscal year of the Company.

Shareholders’ meetings other than the one referred to in the first paragraph
shall be called extraordinary general meetings. The board of directors may call
for the extraordinary general meeting of shareholders at any time as deemed
appropriate.

Shareholders holding shares amounting to not less than one-fifth (1/5) of the
total number of shares wholly sold or shareholders numbering not less than
twenty-five (25) persons holding shares amounting to not less than one-tenth
(1/10) of the total number of shares wholly sold may submit their names and
request the board of directors in writing to call for an extraordinary general
meeting at any time, provided that, the reasons of request for calling for such
meeting shall be clearly stated in the said written request. In such an event,
the board of directors shall proceed to call for a shareholder meeting to be
held within a period of one (1) month from the date of the receipt of such
request from the said shareholders.

Article 34. In calling a shareholders’ meeting, the board of directors shall prepare a
written notice specifying the place, date, time, agenda of the meeting and the
matters to be proposed to the meeting in appropriate detail by clearly
indicating whether it is a matter proposed for acknowledgement or for
consideration, as the case may be, including the opinion of the board of
directors on the said matters, and the said notice shall be distributed to the
shareholders and the registrar not less than seven (7) days prior to the date of
the meeting. The notice shall be published in the newspaper for not less than
three (3) consecutive days and not less than three (3) days prior to the date of
the meeting.

The place of the meeting shall be in the province in which the head office of
the Company is situated or at any other place where the board of directors
prescribed.

Article 38. The matters which should be conducted by the annual general meeting of
shareholders are as follows:

(1) to consider the report of the board of directors concerning the
Company’s business in the past year period

(2) to consider and approve the balance sheet, the statement of profit and
loss for the past year period.

(3) to consider and approve of profit allocation and dividend payment.

4) to consider and elect new directors in place of those who retire by
rotation and fix the remuneration of directors;

-51-



Article 41.

Article 42.

(5) to consider and appoint auditor and fix the remuneration of the auditor.
(6) other business.

The board of directors shall prepare the balance sheet and the statement of
profit and loss as of the last day of the fiscal year of the Company for
submission to the shareholders for consideration and approval at the annual
general meeting. The board of directors shall cause balance sheet and the
statement of profit and loss to be examined by an auditor prior to submission
to the shareholder meeting.

The board of directors shall deliver the following documents to the
shareholders together with the notice calling for an annual general meeting of
shareholders:

(1)  copies of the balance sheets and statement of profit and loss, which
have already been examined by the auditor, including the auditor’s
report; and

2 annual report of the board of directors.

2. The Quorum

Article 35.

Article 36.

3. Voting
Article 37.

At a shareholders’ meeting there shall be not less than twenty five (25)
shareholders and proxies (if any) attending the meeting or not less than one-
half (1/2) of the total number of shareholders and in either case such
shareholders shall hold shares amounting to not less than one-third (1/3) of the
total number of shares sold of the Company, whereby a quorum would then be
constituted.

At any shareholders’ meeting, if one (1) hour has passed from the time
specified for the meeting and the number of shareholders attending the
meeting is still inadequate for a quorum as prescribed in the first paragraph,
and if such shareholders’ meeting was called as a result of a request of the
shareholders, such meeting shall be cancelled .If such meeting was not called
as a result of a request of the shareholders, a new meeting shall be called for
and the notice calling for such meeting shall be dispatched to shareholders not
less than seven (7) days prior to the date of the meeting .In the subsequent
meeting, a quorum is not required

The chairman of the board shall be the chairman of shareholders’ meetings. If
the chairman of the board is not present at a meeting or cannot perform his
duty, and if there is a vice-chairman, the vice-chairman present at the meeting
shall be chairman of the meeting. If there is no vice-chairman or there is a
vice-chairman but he cannot perform his duty, the shareholders present at the
meeting shall elect one shareholder to be the chairman of the meeting.

A resolution of a shareholders’ meeting, the shareholders shall be entitled to
one (1) vote per one (1) share. Any shareholder who has a special interest in
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any matters shall not be entitled to vote, except for voting on the election of
directors. A resolution of the Shareholders” Meeting shall require:

(1) in an ordinary event, the majority votes of the shareholders who attend
the meeting and cast their votes. In case of a tie vote, the chairman of
the meeting shall have a casting vote.

(2) in the following events, a vote of not less than three-fourths (3/4) of
the total number of votes of shareholders who attend the meeting and
have the right to vote:

(@) the sale or transfer of the whole or the substantial part of the
Company’s business to any other person;

(b) the purchase or acceptance of transfer of the business of private
companies or public companies by the Company;

(c) the making, amending or terminating of any agreement with
respect to the granting of a lease of the whole or substantial parts
of the Company’s business, the assignment of the management
of the business of the Company to any person, or the
amalgamation of the business with other persons for the purpose
of profit and loss sharing;

(d) the amendment of the Memorandum of Associations or Articles
of Association of the Company;

(e) the increasing or reducing the Company’s capital;
(f) the dissolution of the Company;
(g) theissuance and offering of debentures of the Company;

(h) the amalgamation of business of the Company with other
companies; or

(i) other activities as prescribed by law which are required the
shareholders’ meeting approval by a vote of not less than three-
fourths (3/4) of the total number of votes of shareholders who
attend the meeting and have the right to vote.

4. Board of Directors

Article 16.

Article 17.

A board of directors for carrying out the Company’s business consists
of not less than five (5) persons and not more than fifteen (15) persons.
Not less than one half of the number of such directors must reside
within the Kingdom of Thailand.

A director need not be a shareholder in the Company.

The directors shall be elected at the shareholder’s meeting in
accordance with the criteria and procedures as follows:

1) Each shareholder shall have one share for one vote;
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Article 18.

Article 21.

Article 23.

2 Each shareholder may exercise all the votes he or she has under
(1) to elect one or several persons as directors or directors, but
the shareholder cannot be divided his or her votes to any person
in any number; and

3) Persons who receive the highest votes arranged in order from
higher to lower in a number equal to that of the number of
directors to be appointed are elected to be the directors of the
Company. In the event of a tie at a lower place, which would
make the number of directors greater than that required, the
chairman of the meeting should have a casting vote.

At every annual ordinary shareholder’s meeting one-third (1/3) of the
directors, or, if the number of directors cannot be divided exactly into
three parts, the number of directors nearest to one-third (1/3) shall
vacate office.

A vacating director may be eligible for re-election.

The directors to vacate office in the first and second years following
the registration of the conversion of the Company shall be drawn by
lots. In subsequent years, the directors who have remained in office for
the longest time shall vacate office.

The shareholders’ meeting may pass a resolution to remove any
director from office prior to retirement by rotation, by a vote of not less
than three-fourths (3/4) of the number of shareholders attending the
meeting and having the right to vote and the shares held by them shall,
in aggregate, be not less than one half of the number of shares held by
the shareholders attending the meeting and having the right to vote.

A director shall have a right to receive remuneration from the
Company in the form of rewards, meeting allowance, gratuity, bonus
or other benefits in accordance with the approval of the shareholders’
meeting which has passed a resolution by not less than two-third (2/3)
of the total number of votes of the shareholders attending the meeting
and having the right to vote. It may be prescribed in fixed amount or
establish the rules and prescribed for particular circumstance(s) or
being perpetual rules until be changed by shareholder’s meeting
resolution. Moreover, a director shall have a right to receive the
allowance and welfare according to the Company’s rule.

The provisions in the first paragraph shall not affect the right of the
director appointed from the officers or employees of the Company to
receive remuneration and benefit in his/her capacity as an officer or
employee of the Company.
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List of the Company’s Directors who represent to be a proxy in the 2010 AGM

Attachment 11
(For granting proxy)

Directors Position Age Address Conflict of Interest
Mr. Somnuk Kyavatanakij Independent Director / 47 yrs | 135 Soi 7 South Sathorn Road, Having Conflict of Interest in
Chairman of the Board Yanawa , Bangkok 10120 Agenda 4: To approve the 2010
annual remuneration of the
Company’s Directors
Mr. Manu Leopairote Independent Director / 66 yrs | 4/377 Sahakornkehasatarn village, | Having Conflict of Interest in
Chairman of the Audit Committee Seri Thai Road, Klongkum, Agenda 4: To approve the 2010
Buengkum, Bangkok 10240 annual remuneration of the
Company’s Directors
Mr. Krairit Nilkuha Independent Director / 58 yrs | Ministry of Energy 17 Rama | Road Having Conflict of Interest in
Member of the Audit Committee Rongmuang , Patumwan District Agenda 4: To approve the 2010
Bangkok 10330 annual remuneration of the
Company’s Directors, and
Agenda 6: To approve the 2010
annual election of new directors
in replacement of directors
retiring by rotation
Mr. Chaikasem Nitisiri Independent Director / 61yrs | 62/999 Moo 8 Rattanathibate Having Conflict of Interest in
Member of the Audit Committee Soi 26, Bangkrasor, Muang, Agenda 4: To approve the 2010
Nontaburi 11000 annual remuneration of the
Company’s Directors
Mr. Utid Tamwatin Independent Director / 61yrs | 13 Soi Indhamara 40 Suthisarn Having Conflict of Interest in
Member of the Audit Committee Road, Dindang, Dindang, Bangkok Agenda 4: To approve the 2010
10400 annual remuneration of the
Company’s Directors
Mr. Nontigorn Kanchanachitra Independent Director 54 yrs | 96 Bumrungmuang Road, Having Conflict of Interest in

Member of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

Wat Rajabhaphit , Phranakorn,
Bangkok 10200

Agenda 4: To approve the 2010
annual remuneration of the
Company’s Directors
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Member of the Corporate Governance
Committee

Vibhavadi-Rangsit road, Ladyao
Chatuchak, Bangkok 10900

7 Miss Puongpech Sarakun Independent Director 63 yrs | 379/3 Soi Theplila 7, Having Conflict of Interest in
Member of the Nomination and Ramkhamheang Road, Agenda 4: To approve the 2010
Remuneration Committee Wangthonglang, Bangkok 10310 | annual remuneration of the
Company’s Directors
8  General Prayut Chan-O-Cha Independent Director 56 yrs | 14 Soi Ruammityanpaholyothin, Having Conflict of Interest in
Chairman of the Corporate Governance Yanpaholyothin Road, Sansen Nai, | Agenda 4: To approve the 2010
Committee Payathai, Bangkok 10400 annual remuneration of the
Company’s Directors
9 Mr. Apisak Tantivorawong Independent Director 56 yrs | 37-39 Dumrongruk Road, Having Conflict of Interest in
Member of the Corporate Governance Klong Mahanak, Pomprab, Agenda 4: To approve the 2010
Committee Bangkok 10100 annual remuneration of the
Company’s Directors, and
Agenda 6: To approve the 2010
annual election of new directors
in replacement of directors
retiring by rotation
10  Mr. Banphot Hongthong Independent Director 62 yrs | 7/91 Soi Vibhavadi 17, Having Conflict of Interest in

Agenda 4: To approve the 2010
annual remuneration of the
Company’s Directors

Remark: Details of Directors Bibliography is shown in the 2009 annual report under the topic of the Company’s Board of Directors.
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Thai Oil Public Company Limited

nzitleuand 0107547000711 Registration No, 0107547000711

123 27ANTUNNNESE 1 U 16 DUUINMATER WUIRauna L‘lliﬂ’Wﬁﬂi‘ ﬂ‘i;\Il"r’lW“‘I 10900
1110’0” 123 Suntowers Building B,16m Floor, Vibhavadi Rangsit Road, Chomphon, Chatuchak, Bangkok 10900, Thailand.
Telephone +66(0) 2299 0000, +66(0) 2617 8300, Fax. +66(0) 2299 0024

Ref 05/0081 March 2, 2010

Subject  Invitation for the 2010 Thai Oil Public Company Limited’s Refinery site visit
To Shareholders of Thai Oil Public Company Limited

Attachment: 1. Itinerary for the 2010 Thai Oil Public Company Limited’s Refinery site visit
2. The correspondence for Thaioil’s Refinery site Visit

Thai Oil Public Company Limited (“the Company”) has arranged for the 2010
Refinery site visit to be held on Wednesday 16™ June, 2010 for the first round and the
second round on Wednesday 7" July 2010. The Refinery site visit will be organized as a
one-day trip with 100 participants for each round. Its itinerary and the correspondence form
are attached herewith as Attachment 12 (1) and 12 (2). The Company would like to invite
interested shareholders to submit their correspondence form to the company via post (reply
paid service) by Friday 23" April. 2010.

In the event that the correspondences submitted to the Company exceed 200, the
Company will randomly select 200 correspondences from the draw to be held on Friday
30™ April, 2010 and will also randomly compile a waiting list in case of cancellation for
shareholder(s). In case of cancellation, the Company will grant the rights to the shareholder
whose name appears first on the waiting list to attend the Refinery site visit. The Company
will disclose the list of the first 200 correspondences drawn, as well as the waiting list on
the Company’s website www.thaioil.co.th on Tuesday 4™ May, 2010 and will contact the
concerned parties for confirmation.

As the Company has many sharcholders, therefore in order to treat them equitably
according to the corporate governance principles, the Company reserves the rights for the
Refinery site visit as 1 shareholder per 1 visit only (no accompanying person and no
transfer of rights).

Please be informed accordingly.

Sincerely Yours,
Thai Oil Public Company Limited

/ / 4
:j ébuﬁé(_

(Surong Bulakul)
Chief Executive Officer

Investor Relations Section
Phone 0 2299 0000 Ext. 7371, 7372, 7373 and 7396
Fax 022990128

Note In this letter, the intended Shareholders represent those whose names appear in the Board has
resolved to set the record date on March 8, 2010, to determine the list of shareholders who may exercise their
rights and participate in the AGM and are entitled to receive dividend; and the shareholders’ registration book-
closing on March 9, 2010

< e = . . [V =
Toandu @ 42/1 il 1 ouugyiin 0 124 dusvgusn Bnneefein daminuayF 20230
Refinery : 42/1 Moo 1 Sukhumvit Road Km.124, Tungsukla, Sriracha, Cholburi 20230, Thailand. Telephone +66(0) 3840 8500, +66(0) 3835 9000, +66(0) 3835 1555 Fax. +66(0) 3835 1554, +66(0) 3835 1444, +66(0) 3835 9019



Attachment 12 (1)

Itinerary for the 2010 Thai Oil Public Company Limited’s Refinery site visit

1% round: Wednesday 16" June, 2010
2" round: Wednesday 7" July, 2010

7.00 - 7.30 a.m. Meet at parking area in front of the Army Club

8.00 a.m.

10.00 a.m.

12.30 p.m.

2.00 p.m.
4.30 p.m.

6.00 p.m.

Register

Leave Bangkok by 40-seat air-conditioned bus (3 buses)
(Food and beverage available on board)

Arrive at Thaioil Refinery, Sriracha, Chonburi

- Refreshments

- Welcome speech by Management

- VDO presentation

- Performance summary / Q&A by Management

- Refinery site tour (stay on bus) with summary briefing by Thaioil staff
Lunch at Pattaya

Leave for the Sanctuary of Truth

Leave for Bangkok

(Food and beverage available on board, souvenir provided)
Arrive safely at the Army club, Bangkok



Attachment 12 (2)

Thai Oil Pubic Company
Correspondence Form for the 2010 Thaioil’s Refinery site visit at Sriracha, Chonburi
1% round: Wednesday 16" June, 2010
2" round: Wednesday 7™ July, 2010

I IMIF TVITS.IMIS.) o e Age....ooi, Years

is a shareholder of Thai Oil Public Company Limited residing at NO. ..........ccocooviiiiiiiiiii e

Telephone number: HOMe...........cccocooveeviiieiicennn, WOrK. ..., Mobile.........ccoovieeiiiiiiiins

Preferred CONTACT MUMIDET ... ... e oo e e e e e ettt

Intend to participate on the Refinery site visit as

O anatural person attending the visit by him/herself

O ajuristic person authorizing (Mr./MrsS./MS.)......cccccoovviviiiiiiiie e Age.........co.. Years
RESIAING Ao ettt a1 et et b eebe et e s et ettt ettt aae s s
.................................................... Telephone number: Home...........c.coocooee oot WOPK
Mobile..........ccoviinn. to attend the Refinery site visit on behalf of myself at this time.

| hereby disclose my personal information to the Company regarding personal illness / allergy /

non-preferable OO aS FOHOWS. .........coiiiii e e

| have read and agreed by the conditions as stated below and certify that information provided in this

correspondence form is true and authentic.

SIGNATUIE. ...ceiiiiiieiie e Shareholder
(S )
Date... ..o
Conditions
1. The shareholders are granted with the rights for 1 seat per 1 shareholder only.

2.

The intended shareholders represent those whose names appear in The Board’s meeting which resolved to set the record
date on March 8, 2010, to determine the list of shareholders who may exercise their rights and participate in the AGM and
are entitled to receive dividend; and the shareholders’ registration book-closing on March 9, 2010, to collect shareholders
names.

Please submit the correspondence form to the Company within April 23™, 2010 via post only (using the reply paid
envelope attached with the Invitation for 2010 AGM, no stamps required). Submissions via other channels are deemed a
violation of condition, the form will not be considered.

The draw to select shareholders will be held on April 30™, 2010, in the event that the numbers of submitted
correspondences exceed 200.

The list of selected shareholders and the waiting list will be announced on the Company’s website
www.thaioil.co.th on May 4™, 2010

The Company will contact (by phone) the selected shareholders, as announced on the website, for traveling
confirmation. In case that the Company is unable to contact the shareholders within 7 working days (start from the
announcement date as stated in No. 5), the Company will regard it as a withdrawal from the shareholders and will contact
the shareholder whose name appears first on the waiting list.

In case of personal illness, allergy or non-preferable food, please bring along your medication and notify the

Company in advance.

The Company reserves the rights to:

8.1 not consider correspondence forms with incomplete and incorrect information and unable to contact.

8.2 decline the accompanying persons from traveling.

8.3 not allow the transfer of rights to travel.

8.4 not allow the transfer of Date of travel

8.5 change traveling itinerary attached as deemed appropriate.

8.6 not consider the shareholders” who had participated on the previous Refinery site visit.
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